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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
BB

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EEHKIBRE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)

BEBIT BEBT BEET BEET BEEAET
(E751) (&%) (E5) (E5])

Revenue — Continuing EEE-FHEER

operations
Restaurant, food and  JE# & & KBS
hotel 235 256 287 348 424
Property investment MERERER
and development 38 39 37 47 267
Others Hith 5 5 - - -
278 300 324 395 691
Profit Attributable
to Equity Holders ISYNCIEEGESEE DN
of the Parent J& 18 4 20 41 56 337 229
Basic Earnings
per Share (cents) BREXRZF (1) 2.77 5.51 7.60 45.18 21.62
Net Assets BEFE 775 786 1,041 1,403 2,852
Total Assets BmEE 1,356 1,459 1,807 2,338 4,241

Analysis of Revenue -
Continuing Operations

Analysis of Profit Attributable to Shareholders
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

MA, Kai Cheung, PhD, BBS (Chairman)
MA, Kai Yum, PhD (Managing Director)
NG, Yan Kwong

Non-Executive Directors

YIP, Hing Chung, BBS, MBE, JP
ZHANG, Huagiao
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LO, Ming Chi, Charles, JP
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WONG, See King

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jp (Chairman)
LO, Man Kit, Sam

YIP, Hing Chung, BBS, MBE, JP
WONG, See King

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

LO, Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
LO, Ming Chi, Charles, Jp
WONG, See King

COMPANY SECRETARY
NG, Yan Kwong
REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACES OF
BUSINESS

26/F Phase Il Wyler Centre
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

5/F Carrianna Friendship Square
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
G

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER
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TRANSFER OFFICE
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26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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Appleby
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The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Chong Hing Bank Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.taksing.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Annual Report of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
for the financial year ended 31 March 2008.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group recorded a
total turnover of HK$691,459,000 (2007: HK$395,217,000),
increased by 75% from last year. During the year, the Group
had discontinued its garment business, the above turnover
did not include garment sales revenue. The Group’s profit for
the year from continuing operations was HK$285,928,000
(2007: HK$357,178,000), decreased by HK$71,250,000, 20%
from last year. The reduction of profit from continuing
operations was the net result of reduction in profit from
associates by HK$168,384,000 and the increase in profit from
other continuing operations, namely property and hotel and
restaurant, by HK$97,134,000. The reduction in profit from
associates was mainly due to large property revaluation surplus
recorded for an associate company, China South City Holdings
Limited (“China South City Group”) in last year which was
not recurring in the current year. On the other hand, both
property and hotel and restaurants divisions achieved strong
growth in turnover as well as operating profit for the year.
Deducting minority interests and loss from discontinued
operation from profit from continuing operations, the Group’s
profit attributable to shareholders for the year was
HK$228,910,000 (2007: HK$336,670,000), reduced by 32%
from last year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2008.

AANERREFERARAZFUBRMARZ =
KEBHE _TTNF=A=+T—HIMBF
B e

£

HE-ZZ N\F=-A=+—HLFE A£EH
B EE 5691,459,0008 L (2T T + F:
395,217,000 7T) " BEFEINTS% - RAFE
N EEEARIENKRER LS ¥ELRE
MREBNEEB - AFEFBEER RN A
285,928,000 T (ZZEZF £ 4 :357,178,000/%
TT) L EERA20% 0 71,250,00058 T B
4 R 2 B SRR 2 FE (B R RDE B R
168,384,000 7T R L fh 35 B 515 (M E KBS
E ) T HN97,134,0008 L Z HE = FE(h
& N A AR A B R B R B N R E R T
RERAF (EEPEER) XFHEAENESE
HEENE NEEWEEEB WM EREA
EEREBEFRNAGGBEEERFBENARY
R - WHEREG RN DB RERERE RIER
BEHKEBE AFERIRELERN B
228,910,000 7t (=T ZF+ 4 :336,670,000%
TT) L EFERA32% o

i g=\
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FERE
Property ih
Review =)

The Group’s turnover and operation profit from property
business for the year was HK$267,481,000 (2007:
HK$47,112,000) and HK$164,375,000 (2007: HK$76,392,000),
increased by 4.7 times and 1.2 times respectively. The
significant increase in turnover and operating profit was mainly
due to the recognition of property sales revenue of
HK$188,420,000 from Grand Lake City project in Yiyang,
Hunan Province which represented completed phase |
residential property of 63,600 sq.m. Due to heavy snow in
January and February 2008 which has caused significant
damages to the province, part of the phase | residential
property was not completed by year end. The remaining phase
| residential property of 39,500 sg.m. will be completed and
recorded as sales in the next financial year. On the other
hand, the 38,000 sq.m. shopping street in Grand Lake City
under construction was also affected by the snow in early
2008, these properties will be completed by 3rd and 4th
quarter in 2008 by phases.

During the year, the Group also sold some remaining residential
property in Shenzhen. Together with rental income from
investment property, revenue amounted to near HK$80 million,
an increase of 67% from last year.

In June 2007, the Group, together with other investors, signed
an agreement with the government of Lianyungang of Jiangsu
Province to develop a wholesale market for trendy industrial
products and raw materials. The project occupies land of
1,250,000 sgq.m. The group subsequently established a
company, China East International Trendy Material City
Development (Lianyungang) Company Limited (“China East”),
with 72% shares to develop the project. In early 2008, China
East acquired 614,000 sg.m. of land at the price of HK$183
per sq.m. of g.f.a. (see circular to shareholders dated 31
January 2008). The Group is now working on construction
planning and marketing research for the project so as to get
approval from relevant government authorities for final project
design. Construction is expected to start by late 2008 or early
2009. As this project is in a good location of the city and the
land cost is very low, it should be able to bring in satisfactory
profit to the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

Associate company China South City Group completed 160,000
sq.m. of residential properties during the year and sold over
70%. Together with increase in rental and other operating
income, operating profit of China South City Group increased
substantially from last year. However, due to large property
revaluation surplus recorded in last year, the Group’s share of
profit from China South City Group decreased from last year.
During the year, China South City Group obtained finance of
US$125,000,000 for second phase market development, out
of which 700,000 sg.m. of textile and leather market extension
will be completed by end of 2008. In addition, China South
City Group signed agreements with Nanchang, capital of
Jiangxi Province and Nanning, capital of Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region in May and October 2007 respectively to
develop mega raw material logistic centre similar to China
South City Shenzhen. The two projects which occupied total
land area of 3.7 million sg.m., will provide continuous business
growth for China South City Group. As a result, the Group's
investment in China South City Group will have even better
prospect.

For the coming year, shopping street and remaining residential
properties in Grand Lake City will be the major source of
revenue from property division and China South City Group
will also continue to have satisfactory profit contribution.

Bt 28 N &) 2 F 0 & B R F M FERK 160,000F J5 0K
MNEFEBE TEHBBEA MEREREM
MW I R EE R A F R I X
FERBEMEEMEENE SIBAFELEEE
HRZBENREMNBA TR - EHHERREA
JRFERK 125,000,000 T g & - fE Z BATH 35 3%
B H&£700,000F A K — BB AT EN
BHERZEENFRTK - MIN ERIKER I
PRAEZEELFRARTAEIAEMED
&fﬁﬁ/uEﬁ*ﬁuaTTﬁz’;aﬁé‘E&%ﬁM%ﬂllﬁ
EROARERMBAYRZZHROREBELEER
e FEAEH83,700,000F 5K ZMIBEE B AER
HEBERFENEBER - SETERREER
MIEENBEEE R TR R

REXF HUHAHRHRRETHES RBE
WHENETERR EHREETHEESEER
HREFNBMER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFERE

8

Hotel, Restaurant and Food

During the year, hotel, restaurant and food business recorded
turnover and operating profit of HK$423,978,000 (2007:
HK$348,105,000) and HK$68,895,000 (2007: 47,308,000),
increased from last year by 22% and 46% respectively. The
major contributors of the continuous strong growth in turnover
and operating profit were Shenzhen, Kunming, Hainan and
Wuhan where both restaurant and mooncake sales recorded
satisfactory growth.

For the coming year, our new 5 star standard hotel main
building in Yiyang, Hunan Province was completed in June
2008, the auxiliary building for restaurant and entertainment
centre will be completed by September 2008. From 4th quarter
of 2008 onward, the hotel will bring in new revenue growth
for the Group. On the other hand, restaurant in western district
of Beijing will start operation by end of July 2008. The second
Beijing restaurant in eastern district is also planned for
operation by the end of 2008. All these new hotel and
restaurants will continue to provide growth factor for the
division.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my appreciation
to the Board of Directors, our management team and staff for
their support and dedication to the Group and to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and other business partners
for their unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 July 2008
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkENEEABBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Kai Cheung, PhD, BBS, aged 66, is the Chairman and
founder of the Group. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’
experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 and 10 years’ experience in the restaurant
business and property development respectively. He is
responsible for the strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is a committee member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is the
President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association, a Vice-President of the Foreign Investment
Association in Shenzhen and Vice-President of Shenzhen
General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Ma also serves as
President and Deputy Chairman of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisations, President of Hong Kong
Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited and Chairman of
Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma
is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.

MA Kai Yum, PhD, aged 57, is Managing Director of the
Group. He has been a Director of the Group since 1984 and
has over 30 years’ experience in the garment business. Mr.
Ma is responsible for the daily operations and administration
and, together with Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, for the strategic
planning of the Group. Mr. Ma is a member of Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and also serves as a Director of the Chinese
Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong and the Federation
of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers. Mr. Ma is a brother of
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

NG Yan Kwong, aged 47, is Executive Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since 2000. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce of the University of
Newcastle in Australia and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Ng was the finance director of a US
beverage company operating in Mainland China. Mr. Ng has
more than 10 years corporate and financial management
experience with multinational consumer product companies in
South East Asia and Greater China region. He also has substantial
working experience in public accountancy practice with a major
international accounting firm.

HITES
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M+ZFHNER TE-_T2FEERERT%
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkENEEABBE
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YIP Hing Chung, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 86, joined the Group in
1994. Mr. Yip is Chairman and Managing Director of Gemmy
Development Company Limited. Mr. Yip was a committee
member of the Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong
Province. He also serves as a President of the Hong Kong &
Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association, Honorary Permanent
President of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Limited, Honorary-President of the Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong and a member of the executive
committee of the New Territories Heung Yee Kuk. Mr. Yip is
also a member of the First and Second Nominating Committee
of the Special Administrative Region of Hong Kong, a
committee member of the National Industrial and Commercial
Association (Guangdong Province) and an Advisory Committee
Member of The Special Economic Zone of Shantou.

ZHANG Huagiao, aged 45, joined the Group in April 2007.
Mr. Zhang is an executive director and chief operating officer
of Shenzhen Investment Limited, a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a non-
executive director of Shenzhen International Holdings Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Kasen International
Holdings Limited, a non-executive director of Coastal Greenland
Limited, Hong Long Holdings Limited, OP Financial Investments
Limited and Guangzhou Investment Company Limited. Prior
to that, he was a managing director and co-head of China
research at UBS Securities where he worked for seven years.
He holds a Master of Economics degree from the Australian
National University. In the 1980s, he worked for the People’s
Bank of China in Beijing. He had also worked in corporate
finance and securities research divisions in a number of
international investment banks. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in the capital and property market of Hong Kong
and the PRC.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkENEEABBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO Ming Chi, Charles, /P, aged 58, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. Lo is a member of the CPA Australia and associate
member of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. He is
a director of New Century Group Hong Kong Limited, Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Xin Corporation
Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director
of Hembly International Holdings Limited. He was an
independent non-executive director of Artfield Group Limited
from 16 September 1998 to 11 April, 2008, Cash Retail
Management Group Limited (formerly know as Pricerite Group
Limited) from 3 November 2003 to 16 November 2006 and
Freeman Corporation Limited from 23 September 2004 to 21
August 2006. All of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He has more than 20 years of
professional and business experience in financial and
investment services in Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian
countries.

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 47, joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant
of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has about 20 years of extensive
experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and
commercial law. He is also admitted as solicitor in England
and Singapore.

Wong See King, aged 46, joined the Group in August 2007.
Mr. Wong is currently a Chief Financial Officer of HAGER Asia
Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which is a US market
leader of building hardware products and is engaging in a
joint venture in the People’s Republic of China (“China”) to
manufacture mainly hinge hardware products. Mr. Wong had
also worked as financial and business executive in various
Australian, UK and US multi-national companies. He has over
15 years’ of working experience in the corporate finance,
building hardware, FMCG manufacturing and distribution
business in Hong Kong and China and property development
business in Australia. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics
from Macquarie University (Australia) and is a member of the
Australian Society of CPAs.

BAFHITES

BHE ATF#+ BESSE A AN —FNA
REB - BEERRMNAESTHMAGEEER
Financial Services Institute of AustralasiaZ & 8 o
MEFTLEEEASERARNES MEGFEED
EBERAAZBIEERITHEH -BEENTZE
EFNERERBRARIZBIIFRITES MR
—ANANFALA+ARBE-_ZZNFHEA+—
HHMEAKEEEBR AR CBILIERNTES
PR -_ZEE=F+—A=ZHE-ZZZETF+—
A+ AHRHARERKIERERAR (FIER
BEEEBEERAR) 2BUERTESRR-Z
ENFNLAZF+=AE=_TTE"FNAZ+—
AEEAREERBR ARG ZBEIIIERITES
ZERRI 2 BFARBAERE TS ERAT
Lo ERM FAREMTMNEROIE R
KRETHAGHBBA_+THENEERPELR-

EXH RFETm B-FTTEFERAMARE
CEEAREENERN REFTEIERME
BEE-EEEEFME RITRAEZER
BHEBN-_TFZEERR IR EA X
BRF N REMER -

ERB BHF4em BT EFNAMALRE
o & e £ I A HAGER Asia Limitedz & J& 81 %
TE ZATRHAGEREE Z — B AR &
EEXBREREHERBEE M SREMA W
HgegdE A\RLME ([FE]) —FMEEL£E
RBPEHERIEERAT - BLENTEREZHE
BN B R B 2 BB A AR R R R AT
ABE-MEFBERFBE 2OERE BEEMH-
FMCGEERDIHEBUREBRMN Z WHEERE
EAEBEAEBBISETELSR - Fa =N
Macquarie University 2 &8 B2 2+ B4 -1 B8
MpEETHMAEEE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED %= 5X

1



DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkENEEABBE

12

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MA Hung Ming, John, PhD, BBS, aged 41, is Managing
Director of Carrianna Holdings Limited and is responsible for
the Group’s property development operations. He joined the
Group in 1990. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of New
York with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Management. He
has extensive experience in the catering industry, as well as
property management and development. He is the son of Mr.
Ma Kai Cheung.

YUEN Wai Man, aged 51, is General Manager of the Group's
Carrianna restaurants in the PRC. He has been serving the
Group since 1991. Mr. Yuen has about 30 years’ experience
in restaurant operations and the catering industry.

CHEN Xi Bo, aged 53, is the Vice Chairman of Carrianna
(Hunan) Enterprise Company Limited. He has many years of
experience in commercial business in Shenzhen. Mr. Chen is
one of the founding shareholders of Carrianna (Hunan)
Enterprise Company Limited. Since 1990s, he has been
engaging in property development business.

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 31, is the Managing Director
of Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise Company Limited. Mr. Ma
graduated from the University of California, Davis with a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and he holds
a Professional Engineer license in Civil Engineering in USA. He
has substantial experience in structural engineering,
construction management and property development. He is
the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEkENEEABBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

LEE Yat Sing, Philip, aged 40, joined the Group in 2008 as
Group Financial Controller and is responsible for the finance
and accounting functions of the Group. He has substantial
experience in financial management and internal control of
listed companies. Mr. Lee has a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

YAU So Kan, aged 37, is General Manager of the Carrianna
Hotel in Foshan, PRC. She has been serving the Group since
2004. Ms. Yau has formed an effective management team in
hotel management since the Company took over the
management of Carrianna Hotel. Ms. Yau has about 10 years’
experience in hotel management and operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
“Stock
Exchange”) which became effective on 1 January 2005. The

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles
and practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Company has complied
with the Code throughout the accounting period covered by
this report, except for deviation in respect of the separation
of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
securities transactions by Directors of the Company. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard under the
Model Code throughout the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently
comprises eight Directors and its composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)
Ma Kai Yum (Managing Director)
Ng Yan Kwong

Non-Executive Directors

Yip Hing Chung
Zhang Huagiao (appointed on 21 April 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King (appointed on 23 August 2007)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the “Director and Senior Management's Biographies” on pages
9 to 13 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company.
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Responsibility of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership,
development of sound business strategies, availability of
adequate capital and managerial resources to implement the
business strategies adopted, adequacy of systems of financial
and internal controls and conduct of business in conformity
with applicable laws and regulations. All Directors have made
full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board and the
Board has always acted in the best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are delegated
with respective levels of authorities with regard to key
corporate strategy and policy and contractual commitments.
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group with divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing the financial
statements, appropriate accounting policies have been adopted
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates have been made. The publication of
the financial statements of the Group is also in a timely
manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of the Group
and the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Board Meetings

During the year, the Board met regularly and held seven
meetings. The attendance record, on a named basis, at these
meetings is set out in the table on page 24 of this report.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate
all directors’ attendance. Regular board meetings are scheduled
to be held four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
At least 14 days’ notice of a board meeting is given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. If potential conflict of interest
involving a substantial shareholder or a director arises, the
matter is discussed in a physical meeting, as opposed to being
dealt with by written resolution. The directors attend meetings
in persons or through other means of electronic communication
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary
assists the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary shall attend all regular
board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information on the Group
and are able to obtain independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the directors. The Company
Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all board meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a package
of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong Kong.
Updates are provided to directors when necessary to ensure
that directors are aware of the latest changes in the commercial
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed an
individual to the post of chief executive officer. The roles of
the chief executive officer have been performed collectively
by all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows
contributions from all executive directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s
policies and strategies.

Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an
individual to becoming a chief executive officer when it thinks
appropriate.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure
that the Board works effectively and fully discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. All directors have been consulted
about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With
the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at any board meeting and have received adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. Their
participation in the board and committee meetings brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management
process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company have been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. According to
Bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company, director
appointed to fill any casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the next annual general meeting after their appointment and
shall be subject to re-election by the shareholders of the
Company. According to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, one-third of the directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation (except Chairman or Managing
Director) and shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More than
one of the independent non-executive directors have the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board confirms that the
Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the independent non-executive directors
are independent under the guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April 2005
and currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors and its composition is as follows:

Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Wong See King (appointed on 23 August 2007)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record, on a named basis, at this
meeting is set out in the table on page 24 of this report.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors and key
executives to run the Company successfully. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that the remuneration policies and
systems of the Group support the Group’s objectives and
strategies. The Committee is provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties fully. A set of written terms
of reference, which described the authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee, was adopted by the Board on 1
April 2005 and the contents of which are in compliance with
the code provisions of the Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(b)

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the
specific remuneration packages of all executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive directors.
The remuneration committee should consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any
loss or termination of their office or appointment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that such arrangements are determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive director who
is a member of the Committee, his remuneration should
be determined by the other members of the Committee;
and

to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of Listing
Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year 2008, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management
of the Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not set up a nomination committee in relation
to the appointment of directors. The directors of the Company
are responsible for making recommendations to the Board for
consideration and approval on nominations, appointment of
directors and board succession, with a view to appoint
individuals to the Board with relevant experience and
capabilities so as to maintain and improve the competitiveness
of the Company. The Board formulates the policy, reviews the
size, structure and composition of the Board, and assesses the
independence of its independent non-executive directors in
accordance with the criteria prescribed under the Listing Rules
and the Code. The appointment of new directors will be
considered and approved by the Board and all new directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders at the annual general
meeting in the first year of their appointment pursuant to the
Bye-laws of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999 and
currently comprises three independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director. It is chaired by an independent
non-executive director. Its composition is as follow:—

Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

Yip Hing Chung

A set of new written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted by
the Board on 1 September 2004 and the contents of which
are in compliance with the Code Provisions and Recommended
Best Practices of the Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting process and
internal controls. The Committee is also provided with other
resources to enable it to discharge its duties fully.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
the external auditors were in attendance. The attendance
record, on a named basis, at these meetings is set out in the
table on page 24 of this report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of
the Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and has discussed auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters, including the review of the annual report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2008.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the auditors of the Group
received approximately HK$2,160,000 for audit service.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The auditors shall not take any non-auditing job to keep its
independence. The disclosure regarding the auditors’
remuneration was set out in the note 6 to the financial
statements.

Attendance records at the meetings of the Board of Directors,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee held for the
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year ended 31 March 2008 are as follows:—

BRI —

Remuneration
Board of Directors Committee Audit Committee
No. of No. of No. of
Name ®E Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance | Meetings Attendance
Exg FHEES ENZES

EERE HERY | EBR¥™ HEXE | E8RY HERE
Executive Directors BITEE
Ma Kai Cheung SNE 7 5 N/A N/A 2 1*
Ma Kai Yum BN 7 6 N/A N/A 2 2%
Ng Yan Kwong REX 7 7 N/A 1 2 2*
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Yip Hing Chung EER 7 1 N/A N/A 2 1
Zhang Huagiao R 7 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Independent Non-Executive BYHTES

Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles HHE 7 4 1 1 2 2
Lo Man Kit, Sam B X 7 4 1 1 2 2
Yau Wing Keung i3 7 2 1 1 2 2
Wong See King HRH 7 1 N/A N/A 2 1
“N/A”: Not applicable ‘NIAT T E A
“x“- |n attendance B EE

Notes: 1 Mr. Zhang Huagiao was appointed as non-executive 5T 1 RZZETLFWOA-+—HB RKEF
director of the Company on 21 April 2007. FEREZEARARRAFHNTES:

2 Mr. Yau Wing Keung resigned as an independent 2 RIZTEZLEFNARAZ+Z=H ik
non-executive director, remuneration committee SEBEARNRRBLIENITES H
member and audit committee member of the MEEEKEREREEENE 2B
Company on 23 August 2007. e

3 Mr. Wong See King was appointed as an independent 3 RITZLFNAZT=H EBEH

non-executive director,
member and audit committee member of the

Company on 23 August 2007.
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COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with
the shareholders of the Company, the Company has established
various channels to facilitate and enhance communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i)  updated key information of the Group is available on
the Company’s website at www.taksing.com.hk to enable
the shareholders of the Company and the investor
community to have timely access to information about
the Group; and

(iii) the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual general
meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders of the
Company or other interested parties.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the businesses units within the Group. Suitable candidates
are appointed by the Board to join in the boards of all
subsidiaries and associates operating in key business areas, to
attend the board meetings and to oversee the operations of
such companies. The management of each business area is
accountable for these operation and performance of the
business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted bi-annual reviews of internal control
system of the Group pursuant to the Codes and considers
that all the material internal controls in the Group are adequate
and effective during the year.
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Property

The Group’s turnover and operation profit from property
business for the year was HK$267,481,000 (2007:
HK$47,112,000) and HK$164,375,000 (2007: HK$76,392,000),
increased by 4.7 times and 1.2 times respectively. The
significant increase in turnover and operating profit was mainly
due to the recognition of property sales revenue of
HK$188,420,000 from Grand Lake City project in Yiyang,
Hunan Province which represented completed phase |
residential property of 63,600 sgq.m. Due to heavy snow in
January and February 2008 which has caused significant
damages to the province, part of the phase | residential
property was not completed by year end. The remaining phase
| residential property of 39,500 sg.m. will be completed and
recorded as sales in the next financial year. On the other
hand, the 38,000 sq.m. shopping street in Grand Lake City
under construction was also affected by the snow in early
2008, these properties will be completed by 3rd and 4th
quarter in 2008 by phases.

During the year, the Group also sold some remaining residential
property in Shenzhen. Together with rental income from
investment property, revenue amounted to near HK$80 million,
an increase of 67% from last year.

In June 2007, the Group, together with other investors, signed
an agreement with the government of Lianyungang of Jiangsu
Province to develop a wholesale market for trendy industrial
products and raw materials. The project occupies land of
1,250,000 sqgq.m. The group subsequently established a
company, China East International Trendy Material City
Development (Lianyungang) Company Limited (“China East”),
with 72% shares to develop the project. In early 2008, China
East acquired 614,000 sg.m. of land at the price of HK$183
per sq.m. of g.f.a. (see circular to shareholders dated 31
January 2008). The Group is now working on construction
planning and marketing research for the project so as to get
approval from relevant government authorities for final project
design. Construction is expected to start by late 2008 or early
2009. As this project is in a good location of the city and the
land cost is very low, it should be able to bring in satisfactory
profit to the Group.
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Grand Lake City project in
Yiyang, Hunan Province
comprises of standard 6
storey garden apartment
and full lake view luxury
high rise apartment, house
and town house.
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Associate company China South City Group completed
160,000 sg.m. of residential properties during the year and
sold over 70%. Together with increase in rental and other
operating income, operating profit of China South City Group
increased substantially from last year. However, due to large
property revaluation surplus recorded in last year, the Group's
share of profit from China South City Group decreased from
last year. During the year, China South City Group obtained
finance of US$125,000,000 for second phase market
development, out of which 700,000 sg.m. of textile and leather
market extension will be completed by end of 2008. In
addition, China South City Group signed agreements with
Nanchang, capital of Jiangxi Province and Nanning, capital of
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region in May and October 2007
respectively to develop mega raw material logistic centre similar
to China South City Shenzhen. The two projects which
occupied total land area of 3.7 million sq.m., will provide
continuous business growth for China South City Group. As a
result, the Group’s investment in China South City Group will
have even better prospect.

For the coming year, shopping street and remaining residential
properties in Grand Lake City will be the major source of
revenue from property division and China South City Group
will also continue to have satisfactory profit contribution.
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Associate company China South
City Group completed 160,000
sq.m. of residential properties
during the year and sold over
70%.
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Phase Il of Textile and leather
market with a total area of
700,000 sq.m. construction is
underway and will be
completed by the end of 2008.
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Hotel, Restaurant and Food

During the year, hotel, restaurant and food business recorded
turnover and operating profit of HK$423,978,000 (2007:
HK$348,105,000) and HK$68,895,000 (2007: 47,308,000),
increased from last year by 22% and 46% respectively. The
major contributors of the continuous strong growth in turnover
and operating profit were Shenzhen, Kunming, Hainan and
Wuhan where both restaurant and mooncake sales recorded
satisfactory growth.

For the coming year, our new 5 star standard hotel main
building in Yiyang, Hunan Province was completed in June
2008, the auxiliary building for restaurant and entertainment
centre will be completed by September 2008. From 4th quarter
of 2008 onward, the hotel will bring in new revenue growth
for the Group. On the other hand, restaurant in western district
of Beijing will start operation by end of July 2008. The second
Beijing restaurant in eastern district is also planned for
operation by the end of 2008. All these new hotel and
restaurants will continue to provide growth factor for the
division.
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HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD
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The Group's 5 star standard hotel
main building in Yiyang, Hunan
Province was completed in June 2008.
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During the year, restaurant
turnover and moon cake sales
continued the trend of strong
growth in recent years.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s consolidated net assets
after deduction of minority interests was HK$2,583,863,000
(2007: HK$1,368,310,000) and consolidated net assets after
deduction of minority interests per share was HK$2.26 (2007:
HK$1.83).

The Group's free cash and bank balances was HK$133,701,000.
Netting off cash deposits pledged for borrowing, the group’s
net bank and other borrowings was HK$626,491,000. Net
borrowings less free cash and bank balances was
HK$492,790,000, representing 19% (2007: 34%) of the
Group’s consolidated net assets after deduction of minority
interests. The Group's borrowings are principally on a floating
rate basis.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 8 February 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (“KC Ma"”) and Mr. Ma Kai Yum
("KY Ma"), the substantial shareholders and executive directors
of the Company, to acquire a 55% equity interest in Carrianna
(Hunan) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Carrianna”) for a total
consideration of RMB417,450,000, of which RMB60,000,000
was satisfied by cash and RMB357,450,000 by the issue of
224,258,432 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1.60 per
share to KC Ma and KY Ma. On 31 May 2007, the acquisition
was completed. Upon the completion, Hunan Carrianna, which
is principally engaged in property development, has become a
subsidiary of the Company. Further details of the transaction
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 30 March
2007.

On 25 May 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
Yiyang Yin Ye Fa Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd. (the “Vendor")
to acquire an additional 20% equity interest in Hunan
Carrianna at a total consideration of RMB167,000,000, of
which RMB83,500,000 was satisfied by cash and
RMB83,500,000 by the issue of 30,476,677 ordinary shares of
the Company to the Vendor. The transaction was completed
on 31 August 2007. After completion, the Group held 75%
equity interest in Hunan Carrianna. Further details of the
transaction were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 18 May 2007.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(continued)

On 31 October 2007, the Group disposed of 80% equity
interest in Amica Fashion Company (Proprietary) Limited, which
is engaged in the manufacture, trading and distribution of
garment in South Africa. The disposal was settled by a cash
consideration of HK$10,568,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FUTURE
COMMITMENT

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has major contingent
liabilities relating to guarantee given to bank for mortgage
loan facilities granted to purchasers of properties of
approximately HK$19,808,000 (2007: HK$32,512,000). In
addition, the Group has contingent liabilities relating to
guarantee given to a bank in connection with facilities to an
associate of approximately HK$9,490,000 (2007:

HK$11,000,000).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at the balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, time deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, properties
under development and inventories with a total carrying value
of approximately HK$1,440,566,000 (2007: HK$935,520,000)
were pledged to secure general banking, trade finance and
other facilities granted to the Group. In addition, rental income
generated in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group were assigned to bankers to secure loan facilities
granted to the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group, China
South City Group has issued US$125,000,000 secured
the Group, being a
shareholder of China South City Group, has entered into a

convertible notes. In this regard,
share charge agreement by pledging 2,040,000 shares of China
South City Group and granting certain indemnities. Further
details of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 July 2007.

In the prior year, the carrying amount of the Group's properties
held for sale pledged as security for the Group's bank loans
was HK$23,309,000.
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EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk with respect to
Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in operations in Mainland China. The directors
consider that the exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against
Renminbi in the foreseeable future is expected to be relatively
stable and the appreciation in Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollars is expected to be mild, there is no hedge against
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates.

The Group has certain major investments in operations in
Mainland China, whose net assets are exposed to translation
risk. The management does not expect any material adverse
impact from the foreign exchange fluctuation, as an expected
mild appreciation in Renminbi will further benefit the Group's
net assets position in the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The directors herein present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the property
investment and development, the operations of hotel,
restaurant and food businesses and the manufacture, trading
and distribution of garments.

During the year, the Group ceased its garment business. There
were no other significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 55 to 192.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK2 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year, payable
to the shareholders on the register of members of the Company
on 22 August 2008. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the balance sheet.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The table set out below summarises the published results,
assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated as appropriate. This summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(continued)

BRERNBE (&)

Year ended 31 March

=A=+—HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
CEZET)\F ZETF ZEEARF —TERF —TTOEF
FET FETT FET FHET FE&TT
(E%)) (&%) (&5)) (&=5)
RESULTS E 5
REVENUE I =
Continuing
operations BEED 691,459 395,217 324,393 300,059 277,637
Discontinued
operation EIFEET 153,860 260,594 270,946 380,936 330,335
845,319 655,811 595,339 680,995 607,972
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRREF 246,404 343,897 57,896 43,686 20,739
Attributable to: JE1f
Equity holders [ENSIN )
of the parent BAEA 228,910 336,670 56,130 40,680 20,468
Minority interests LEREER 17,494 7,227 1,766 3,006 271
246,404 343,897 57,896 43,686 20,739
ASSETS, LIABILITIES
AND MINORITY EE-BER
INTERESTS PERBRREER
TOTAL ASSETS wmaE 4,240,510 2,338,480 1,806,906 1,458,638 1,356,277
TOTAL LIABILITIES wes (1,388,630)  (935,979) (765,788)  (672,329)  (581,659)
MINORITY INTERESTS PEREER (268,017) (34,191) (25,014) (21,614) (23,342)
2,583,863 1,368,310 1,016,604 764,695 751,276
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SEETRESE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ME-BERIRERREWE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment REENME BEREEREEDMERFTAH

and investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 35(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2008, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision of
The Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to
HK$61,088,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$1,275,015,000, may be

distributed in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledge of assets
are set out in notes 39 and 42, respectively, to the financial
statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$140,200 (2007: HK$177,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Ma Kai Cheung

Ma Kai Yum

Ng Yan Kwong

Non-Executive Directors:
Yip Hing Chung
Zhang Huagiao (appointed on 21 April 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King (appointed on 23 August 2007)
Yau Wing Keung (resigned on 23 August 2007)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Lo
Ming Chi, Charles will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam will retire by rotation, and being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 102(B) of the Company's Bye-
laws, Mr. Wong See King will retire from office, and being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ma Kai Cheung had entered into a service contract with the
Company. The contract has no fixed terms of engagement
and is subject to termination by either party giving three
months’ notice in writing.

Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a service contract with the
Company. The contract has no fixed terms of engagement
and is subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company's Bye-laws and termination by either party giving
three months’ notice in writing.

Ma Kai Yum had no service contract with the Company at the
balance sheet date.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ interests
in the securities of the Group”, and in the share option scheme
disclosures in note 34 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Company’s directors,
their respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE GROUP

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in
the register referred therein; or which (c) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) under the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in shares

(a) The Company

Number of ordinary shares held
and nature of interest

EERARENIESER

R-BZENF=ZA=1T—"B ARBIZEERE
ZITRABRARREARFEABERE (E
&R (EHFRHEGED) EXVEL) RGN K&
BEPHEBEUNTEEEAR ZFEEE (R
(BHFREEHRD) EXVEETH A RESHE 2
REMEARBAREEBMEXZMAERLRA
(T2 fr]) (BREZ(GESFRBEGEN) EHE
WA NERER 2D SIRR) - (ORIFCEHRN
(BHERBAERD) E321ERERTHEZER
A ORE EMRZ EMARESETE
HFRHZFESA (FETR) ARTHAER
NCIDSE: o e 5 A

RBROzHR
(a) ZKARH
Underlying

shares
pursuant to

Percentage of
the Company’s

Personal Family Other share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
REBREZ hARE
FEEEBRROBARERNE HBRRAHEA BRITRA
Bspg &6 AAER RS Hib s (FitzE1) At Afitt
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 213,994,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 10,000,000 492,423,197 43.04
ENE interest of spouse, (note 2) (note 3)
beneficiary of trust (Fitzt2) (B 53)
ExELA BEERR
FRRHEA
Ma Kai Yum Interest of spouse 41,074,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 10,000,000 155,475,300 13.59
(SRS and beneficiary (note 4)  (notes 5 & 6)
of trust . (Fi3E4) (P 5716)
EBERRETREA
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 11,768,000 - - - 11,768,000 1.03
REX ERfiEA
Zhang Huagiao Beneficial owner - - - 7,300,000 7,300,000 0.64
KB ERBEBA
Yip Hing Chung Beneficial owner 3,520,000 - - - 3,520,000 0.31
EER ERfiEA
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Beneficial owner - - - 450,000 450,000 0.04
FRE EnBEBA
Lo Man Kit, Sam Beneficial owner - - - 150,000 150,000 0.01

BXH
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(1

The underlying shares represent interests of options
granted to the Directors and senior executive under the
Share Option Scheme to acquire shares of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”.

The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of
Ma Kai Cheung.

Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a
discretionary trust which effectively owns the entire issued
share capital of Regent World Investments Limited
("Regent World”) and 70% of the entire issued share
capital of Bond Well Investments Limited (“Bond Well"”).
At the balance sheet date, Regent World owned
184,121,625 shares and Bond Well owned 75,007,400
shares of the Company.

The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of
Ma Kai Yum.

Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a
discretionary trust which effectively owns the entire issued
share capital of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand
Wealth"”) and Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World").
At the balance sheet date, Grand Wealth owned
74,651,040 shares and Peaceful World owned 19,050,000
shares of the Company.

Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of
Real Potential Limited (“Real Potential”). At the balance
sheet date, Real Potential owned 7,500,000 shares of the
Company. The interests of Real Potential in the Company
are therefore deemed to be the interests of Peaceful World
in which Ma Kai Yum is also deemed to have interests for
the reason as stated in note 5 above.

EERAEENIZEDS (5)

RIEH 2 FR ()
(a) Zxaa (&)
B 5

(1) HEROTHIEEERSRITHRABRERE
Bt BIER 2 A RBA R BB 2 B
B AR EEREBREMNE34BR
REETE] —Hfe

(2) ZEROHBENTENEFREBES-

B) BNERERAR—HEHE2EEANEZR
A ° 3% TH {5 5T B ¥ #% B Regent World
Investments Limited ( [Regent World]) Z
2 EP B 17 0% A K Bond Well Investments
Limited ([Bond Well] ) )70% 2 2 17 &
Ao FA 5B B Regent World i A A 2 7]
184,121,625/ 2 I {7 - Bond Well BIl#E
£ AR F75,007,4008% 2 B 5

(4) ZEBROBESNTHRNEFHEBRES-

BG) BNMARARERAR—BEE2EEANEZR
A ZBEEFER %A Grand Wealth
Investments Limited ( [ Grand Wealth]) &
Peaceful World Limited ( [ Peaceful
World] ) 89282 #1TRA-REEB
Grand Wealth# 5 7N 2 8174,651,0400% 2
B 5 - T Peaceful Worldf # B A& 2 7]
19,050,000% 2 B& 17 ©

(6)  Peaceful World#E & Real Potential Limited
(TReal Potentiall ) #) 2 &2 BT 7
4% & B  Real Potentiali B &KX R 7
7,500,0000% 2 #& 15 < Bl 1}t Real Potential 7
NN B B HE 3 45 B Peaceful World#9 #2
Z i IE QAP SR SAT AL - 55T SR ON AR A
A Peaceful WorldH) 4 25

&
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF

THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

EERAEENIZEDS (5)

RBRHZHE

(4=
( )

(b) Subsidiaries (b) HiEBLA
Percentage of the
subsidiary’s issued
Name of Number of  Type of share capital
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares (ordinary shares)
hHEAR
Fir ERTRABROL
WEARER Esps L) RGBE  ROEH (BEBRH)
Amica Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 10,000 Ordinary 10
Limited
TEMBERBRAF U/ ESEERA el
Carrianna Chiu Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 15,000  Ordinary 1.5
Chow Restaurant
(T.S.T.) Limited
EEF M EE A/ EEXHEA EEAR
(RPWE)BRAF
Carrianna Chiu Yip Hing Chung  Beneficial owner 100,000  Ordinary 10
Chow Restaurant
(T.S.T.) Limited
EEFHMNEE RER EnBEEA BB
(RPHE)BRAF
Ginza Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 15 Ordinary 2.5
Company Limited
UL ERERAT ENE EnBEEA R
Ginza Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 18 Ordinary 3
Company Limited
EVEERBRLOA FENR FREaEA R ilre
Ginza Development Yip Hing Chung Beneficial owner 30 Ordinary 5
Company Limited
EBEERBRLOA EER ERBEEAA EiEk
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF

THE GROUP (continued)
Long positions in shares (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

EERAEENIZEDS (5)

REBZEFR (8
(b) M8 AE ()

Percentage of the
subsidiary’s issued

Name of Number of  Type of share capital
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares (ordinary shares)
hHEAR
Fir ERTRABROL
WEARER Esps L) RGBE  ROEH (BEBRH)
Gartrend Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
RRERARAA FNE EREAA BREE TE
iR FE B
Gartrend Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
REERARLA SR/ EREBA BREH T iE
EERR D
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 9,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
ENE ESEEA EREE TR
iR FE B 1
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 1,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited deferred
FNR EREAA BRER @
iR FE B £

In addition to the above, Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai
Yum have non-beneficial personal equity interests in
certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group
solely for the purpose of complying with their minimum

company membership requirements.

BRA LRS- BN ERENTARAEE R
BETHBARNIFEEREARSER I
THERT A& ARBIR B &K BT M #F
EO
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company, nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as detailed in note 43 to the financial statements, no
director had a beneficial interest in any material contract to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in note 34 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BRES (9

RER RIBZTEIE T WRITE 2 BRED
T

Price of Company’s shares***

BREHA RDFERA 2l **+
Date of
At1 Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31 grant of Exercise Exercise Atgrant Immediately At exercise
April during during during March share period of price of date of  before the date of
2007 the year the year the year 2008 options* share options  share options** options exercise date options
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
per share per share per share per share
RZBENE B
RZZZtE =A BRE TRBRE TREBRE RERE BRE RBRE
BA-H REARE RERTE RERXR =t+-8 B EL B RUZBM TREZBHA  RZAH
SRET  SRET  SRER  SBER
Executive Directors
HiES
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000  26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 030 0.30 - -
SNERE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000  18-12-2006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 - -
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000  26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30 - -
SNEE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000  18-12-2006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 - -
17-12-2016
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30 233 231
RERRE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - 18-12-2006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 233 231
17-12-2016
28,000,000 - (8,000,000) - 20,000,000
Independent
Non-Executive Directors
BUFHAES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 300,000 - - - 300,000  26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30 - -
BAREE 25-10-2015
150,000 - - - 150,000  18-12-2006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 - -
17-12-2016
Mr. Yau Wing Keung 300,000 - (300,000) - - 26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30 1.94 2.03
BAREE 25-10-2015
150,000 - (150,000) - - 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 1.94 2.03
17-12-2016
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam 150,000 - (150,000) - - 18122006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 247 2.49
EX#HEE 17-12-2016
1,050,000 - (600,000) - 450,000
Non-Executive Director
FUTES
Mr. Zhang Huagiao - 7,300,000 - - 7,300,000  23-4-2007  23-4-2008 to 2.49 2.49 - -
FBEE 22-4-2012
- 7,300,000 - - 7,300,000
Other employees
HER
7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000  26-10-2005  26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30 - -
25-10-2015
2,300,000 - (1,150,000) - 1,150,000  18-12-2006  18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30 213 2.15
17-12-2016
- 11,000,000 - - 11,000,000 23-4-2007 23-4-2008 to 2.49 249 - -
22-4-2012
- 700,000 - - 700,000 24-8-2007 24-2-2008 to 215 215 - -
23-8-2012
- 500,000 - (500,000) - 24-8-2007 1-5-2009 to 215 2.15 - -
23-8-2012
38,350,000 19,500,000 (9,750,000) (500,000) 47,600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes to reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:

*

* %

* Kk k

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of
grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing price
on the trading day immediately prior to the date of grant of
the options. The price of the Company’'s shares disclosed
immediately before the exercise date of the share options is the
weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices
immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised over all of the exercises of options within the disclosure
line.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #§

BRES (8

A T3 ) B 2 B S R Y o

* %

* Kk k

BhEETENNANREAREEARAESR
ETEHORAKA-

BRENITEER XD NE S A SR X AL -
FARARAERE S MR-

ARAARBERERDASAMBRENRERRRE
BRERNERMN—EXZ AR TE
PAFT 6 B8 R B 3 AT B R AT B 2 AR A Bk An
B4R 2B 32 AT AT 0 2 W B R R B R B 1T (&
P& B AR 1R 2 It I e



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERWEE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2008, according to the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was
known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO:

Long positions in shares

FERR

RZFBZFNF=ZA=1t—B REXARAKRE
FREIERD) £336FFEZERMARMR LA
EHESEMAM THALHAR (AFEARARAE
ERETBITRAR) ERRRZ B RABBEB D
HERE AR LARERZMABEIEXV
ME2D B RE3IN MIELHE

RRBZHR

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held share capital
BEATA EARATA
FERR i-8%) M =E ZTER#AE ERITRABSL
East Asia International Trustees Trustee a 360,330,065 31.49
Limited EFEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled b 259,129,025 22.65
corporations
XEN A
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled C 101,201,040 8.85
corporations
RERN AR
Regent World Investments Holding corporation b 184,121,625 16.09
Limited BEEZERAA
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation b 75,007,400 6.56
BEEERAR
Grand Wealth Investments Holding corporation C 74,651,040 6.52
Limited BEEZERRAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR (5)

Long positions in shares (continued)

Notes:

East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT") is the trustee
of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his
family are the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Golden Yield Holdings Limited (“Golden Yield”), EAIT was
indirectly interested in 259,129,025 shares of the Company.
EAIT is also the trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma
Kai Yum and his family are the objects and through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Wealthy Platform Limited (“Wealthy
Platform”), EAIT was indirectly interested in 101,201,040 shares
in the Company. As at the balance sheet date, EAIT was
effectively interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of the
Company.

Golden Yield owns the entire issued share capital of Regent
World and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well,
was indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of
the Company. The total shares held by both Regent World and
Bond Well are the same block of shares as disclosed in “Other
interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in the Securities of the Group” set out

above.

Wealthy Platform owns the entire issued share capital of Grand
Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owns the entire issued
share capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World, was
indirectly interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and
Real Potential are the same block of shares as disclosed in
“QOther interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in the Securities of the Group” set out

above.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not

aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2008, had

registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company in the register that was
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS OF
THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance obligation of the controlling shareholders
(Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group imposes
specific performance obligations on the controlling shareholders
of the Company:

ETRAZEHEERERRE

RETERBZT EERREBEBTERER
L (E+=F%F13.181%)

TR TAEBEER 2 HHEREARA 2
BRRARERITAEML:

Outstanding balance of Specific
banking facilities as at Final maturity performance
31 March 2008 of banking facilities obligations
(HK$'000)
R-EENF=A=+—H BITERREZHA NHEBTEMR
REBRTERKHE
TET
65,793 18 October 2011 (Note)
—ET——F+A+N\HRH (P 3E)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, holds 43.04% shareholding interest in the Company,
and Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the managing director of the Company, holds
13.59% shareholding interest in the Company, undertakes to maintain
for a total of at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out
in notes 36 and 43 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

GEE
ARRZERRBERREN B AR AALA
43.04% 2 A RAD T 2 B ERIEBEN K
AHEART13.50% 2 RAMS EFRHBRS RS
BEAXTLRARTREGS1%:

BEXS

REBBEXRZFBHERYBREWEI6R
430

fR EXTEREEIN BEREMRR B AKE LR
AIZRERBEFERER S
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's revenue and purchases for the
year respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's staff consists of approximately 100 employees in
Hong Kong and approximately 2,100 employees outside Hong
Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis
within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, the directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard under the Model
Code for the year ended 31 March 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 14 to 25.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director of the
Company.

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the review of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2008.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Company has established its Remuneration Committee in
April 2005. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo Man Kit,
Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong See
King. A set of written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the remuneration committee, was
adopted by the Board on 1 April 2005.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish and
maintain an appropriate and competitive level of remuneration
to attract, retain and motivate directors and key executives to
run the Company successfully. The Remuneration Committee
will ensure that the remuneration policies and systems of the
Group support the Group’s objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and still considers all of the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2008, the Group had outstanding bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$646,796,000, cash,
bank balances and deposits amounting to approximately
HK$154,006,000. Netting off pledged time deposits of
HK$20,305,000, the Group’s net borrowings and available
cash and bank balances were HK$626,491,000 and
HK$133,701,000 respectively. Taking into account the
availability of banking facilities, the directors believe that the
Group has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments
and working capital requirements.

Particulars of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to develop and grow while maintaining
its healthy financial position and solid business foundation to
create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 July 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B2 HEN RS

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tak Sing Alliance
Holdings Limited set out on pages 55 to 192, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

F Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
(RERZFMK L2 FER 2 E])
I AL AR 3R

RZEED AT H]) 2 FE&FI &N 55
Z 192K Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited#9 &
BHREx UVBREREERZZZENF=ZA=1
—HORAERAREEBBREBEZBILLSF
EWireBaRk GERTRGEHRNGER
EMER UARFESHEXBERE MR
e

ESRUBRREAENTE

BEAREFARAERBEB LGOS HEML
FEVBBRERARBERAGIRE YEE
MARMINRZEHRE - AEBER
EhEEERENEEM AR MR R
RIBBEOA IS AEFERERTFEHRE
R R M BB ERE R R BEMERE
ENGERER REBAMEL G BN G A

RN ERE

BN ETRBRERMNBEZEHZETHRE
BREA -BMRERERE1981F(RARE)
FEOOEMMBIE ERBERERE BRI AN T
PIMREEST A AEEMAR BB AR
EENRND HEMNEMATATENFAEERRNE
Fo

RMERBEEESHAMASHEMNEERE
AgETEZ - EEEMBREMETERSRS,
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

22 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e WK
Year ended 31 March 2008
BE-_ZTZN\F=ZA=+—HIFE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENE —EELHF
M 5E FHExT FAET
(&E351))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEXK
REVENUE Y 2= 5 691,459 395,217
Cost of sales 8 6 PR A (420,154) (218,564)
Gross profit EF 271,305 176,653
Other income and gains = NS & 130,720 83,559
Selling and distribution expenses SHEREERX (105,043) (86,774)
Administrative expenses TER X (94,909) (64,448)
Other expenses HEAEY (6,743) (14,692)
Finance costs B 7% B S 7 (32,403) (21,584)
Share of profits and losses of associates J&1f B 4~ &) % 7] & &5 18 169,630 338,014
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R %4 A1 % A 6 332,557 410,728
Tax TIE 10 (46,629) (53,550)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM FREEELKEF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 285,928 357,178
DISCONTINUED OPERATION FEREER
Loss for the year from a FAFEBEXEBER
discontinued operation 12 (39,524) (13,281)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEEREF 246,404 343,897
Attributable to: FE 1l
Equity holders of the parent ISYNCIEELESEE PN 11 228,910 336,670
Minority interests DB RS 17,494 7,227
246,404 343,897
DIVIDENDS BRE 13
Interim W HA 11,141 7,456
Proposed final e N1 22,882 22,247
34,023 29,703
HK cents HK cents
(Restated)
Il Bl
(E31))
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEBERERA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhHEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 14
Basic BN
— For profit for the year — F RE F 21.62 4518
~ For profit from — FEEER R A
continuing operations 25.63 47.59
Diluted g
- For profit for the year — F N F 21.18 44.01
— For profit from —RHEBEEBRN
continuing operations 25.11 46.36

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ Bk & =




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

=AD&~ =

%T\ aEaE E\ fE\ ?%

31 March 2008
ZEENF=ZA=+—H

56

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZETtF
Bt 5 FHET FiE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BE R&E 15 337,968 201,486
Investment properties "B 16 1,191,683 1,059,297
Prepaid land lease payments T8+ 30 A & RIE 17 137,042 1,088
Goodwill Gk 18 41,399 8,721
Other intangible assets Hith|mEEE 19 533,559 =
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity EHAEHEEER 21 = =
Interests in associates (=) ANECIE £ 22 763,996 473,431
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 19,761 19,708
Financial assets at fair value EATFEINEREREBRT
through profit or loss BREEMEE 24 12,978 12,092
Properties under development BRPYE 25 509,566 =
Total non-current assets EMEBBRE E 3,547,952 1,775,823
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development BRPYE 25 26,901 =
Properties held for sale = Y 187,139 90,458
Inventories FE 26 51,412 53,862
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWBRE R e KA RIE 27 273,100 268,610
Pledged time deposits EEBETEHER 28 20,305 20,624
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEHEIER 28 133,701 129,103
Total current assets mENREE 692,558 562,657
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Trade creditors e E 5 8RR 29 (95,895) (38,193)
Sundry creditors, accruals and HENER BAEAR
deposits received AW R & (137,548) (103,110)
Interest-bearing bank and Mt B 2 RITREMER
other borrowings 30 (259,157) (235,818)
Finance lease payables JE REE M LY 31 (790) (288)
Tax payable JE R 75 18 (119,919) (83,960)
Total current liabilities mEEEE (613,309) (461,369)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 79,249 101,288
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRDAEE
— page 57 — %578 3,627,201 1,877,111
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAER
31 March 2008
TEENF=ZA=1+—H
2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—EENE —ETLF
B 5 T T FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABRRBARG
- page 56 — %568 3,627,201 1,877,111
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B 2 R1T &
other borrowings HEER 30 (387,639) (378,846)
Finance lease payables JE REE M LY 31 (861) (319)
Deferred tax IR E T 18 32 (386,821) (95,445)
Total non-current liabilities ERBBREE (775,321) (474,610)
Net assets BEEFE 2,851,880 1,402,501
EQUITY B% A<
Equity attributable to equity BRAIKRODEFE A
holders of the parent JEfL =
Issued capital BBEITRA 33 114,412 74,664
Reserves B 35(a) 2,446,569 1,271,399
Proposed final dividend BEKREE 13 22,882 22,247
2,583,863 1,368,310
MINORITY INTERESTS DERERER 268,017 34,191
Total equity BT (B 2,851,880 1,402,501
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
EN&
Managing Director Executive Director
EFpgE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN SR

Year ended 31 March 2008
BEz-_ZZN\F=ZA=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BARRBERARE
Leasehold
land and
Issued Share  building Share Exchange  Capital Proposed
share  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption  Reserve  Retained final Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
HELH
Rt REF RHIR E} -0 B3 H8

Bx  EER EGRE  EER HERE TERE REER  BRE REE  REBRR & BiEE ARag
i Tér  TEr  TEn  TRn  TAr  TEm  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn TRz TEr AR

At 1 April 2006 RZEEREMA-A 74359 46595 46432 3762 (86,230) 4,827 316 581 498,669 7436 1,016,104 25014 1,041,118

Exchange realignment B BE - - - - - 9,403 - - - - 9,403 378 9,781

Total income and expense  KEFEE

for the year recognised ~ RIEAR BT

directly in equity b5k ] = = = = = 9,403 = = = = 9,403 378 9,781
Proft for the year KEEETIEE - - - - - - - - 33670 B0 727 38

Total income and expense  KEFH % BE

for the year - - - - - 9,403 - - 336,670 - 346,073 7,605 353,678
Dividends paid to SERRERES

minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - (8,121) (8,121)
Advance from SERRER

minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - 9,693 9,693
Share of reserve of EERERAGE

associates - - - - - 13,942 - - - - 13,942 - 13,942
Final 2006 dividend ER-ZERE

declared R = = - - - - - - - (7,436) (7,436) - (7,436)
Issue of shares BARA 3 305 2,042 - (1,049) - - - - - - 1,298 S 1,298
Equity-settled share WRHEE

option arrangements RREL RS 34 - - - 578 - - - - - - 578 - 578

Interim 2006 dividend ~~ —EEAERHKS 13 = = = = = = =
Proposed final 2007 BE-3TtE=H
dividend S+-RRERE 13 = = = = = = =

(7,456) = (7,456) = (7,456)

(22.47) 2,247 - - -

At 31 March 2007

ZR=1-A 74664 467,994 46432 8,498 (86,230 28,172 316* 581F  805,636* 22,247 1368310 34,191 1,402,501
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Year ended 31 March 2008
ZENF=ZA=1T—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BARRBERARE
Leasehold
land and
Issued Share  building Share Exchange  Capital Proposed
share  premium revaluation  option  Goodwill equalisation redemption  Reserve  Capital ~ Retained final Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve funds  reserve  profits  dividend Total interests  equity
Notes ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
A1
Rkt RET ROIE EX -2 £ 58
ke BEE EfEE EEE HEEE TEEE WERE REE EABE REEF  RERR £t RREE ARAE
fits Tér TEn  TRn TRn TRn TRr TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn
At 1 April 2007 RZZELEMA-A 74,664 467,994 46,432 8,498 (86,2300 28,1712 316 581 - 805636 22,247 1368310 34191 1,402,501
Exchange realignment B BE - - - - - 32,969 - - - - - 32969 613 39103
Total income and expense  KEFEE
for the year recognised ~ RIEAR BT
directly in equity pAIsT ] = = = = - 3299 = = = = - 399 6134 39103
Profit for the year RERETFE - = = = = = = = - 228910 - 28910 17494 246,404
Total income and expense  AFEHELE
for the year - - - - - 32,99 - - - 228910 - 261,879 23,628 285,507
Acquisition of a subsidiary ¥ — K BAA 3 - - - - - - - - - - 340,267 340,267
Acquisition of gk RER
minority interests 36 - - - - - - - - - - - - (152,871) (152,871)
Contribution from minority » #REERIAES
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 8,555 8,555
Disposal of a subsidiary & —FKBAH 37 = = = = - 10,581 = = = = - 10581 (2,267) 8314
Dividends paid to PERRERL S
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (12977)  (12,977)
Advance from SERRER
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 29491 29,491
Share of reserve of AEBERAGE
associates - - - 11,528 - 63,692 - 5414 36,554 - - 117,188 - 117188
Final 2007 dividend ER-2Et+E
declared FHRE - - - - - - - - - - Q241 (22,247 - (22247)
Issue of shares BIRE 33 39,748 807,021 = (2,693) = = = = = = - 844,076 - 844,076
Equity-settled share R EE
option arrangements AREL RS 34 - - - 15217 - - - - - - - 1517 - 1517
Interim 2007 dividend “ERILERERE 3 = = = = = = = = - (1,140 - (11,141) - (1,14
Proposed final 2008 BE-FT/\F=H
dividend “t-BRERE 13 - - - - - - - - - (288) 2288 - - -
At 31 March 2008 RZEENE
=A=t-H 14,412 1,275,015%  46,432%  32,550%  (86,230)* 135,414 316%  5995*  36,554* 1,000,523* 22,882 2,583,863 268,017 2,851,880
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * W EFE#EA $£2,446,569,0008 L (Z T+ F:

HK$2,446,569,000 (2007: HK$1,271,399,000)

consolidated balance sheet.

in the

1,271,399,0008 ) EBRBRELRAEEAGBER

ZiREHEZA-

=S
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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Year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TZNF=ZA=+—HLFE

60

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZETtF
B 3% FHET FiE T
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING XREZLEXEKH
ACTIVITIES RERAFE 38 228,880 14,972
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES RETBZHERE
Interest received B U F B 5,797 2,863
Purchases of items of property, BAVE BEREZEB
plant and equipment (150,808) (45,008)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— MM E A A 36 (21,404) =
Acquisition of minority interests Wk L BIR R s (87,297) -
Acquisition of an interest Wi —HBE AR ER
in an associate - (5)
Disposal of a subsidiary L E—FHRB AR 37 (11,714) =
Additions to prepaid land lease TE - 4ot FH & SRIEE N
payments (135,987) -
Additions of properties under BRAPYELM
development (148,767) =
Purchases of available-for-sale BAHEBEREAEKE
investments - (12,500)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWE BB R&HE
of property, plant and equipment ’) BT 15 3IE 5,144 1,813
Proceeds from disposal of HERBEMERNMEGHRIE
investment properties 3,605 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHLERE
available-for-sale investments - 6,370
Decrease/(increase) BEEBERFERZ
in pledged time deposits wA () 1,640 (13,103)
Net advance to associates Mt N R BRFE (3,747) (19,326)
Net cash outflow KBRS 2R R FE
from investing activities (543,538) (78,896)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

REREnER
Year ended 31 March 2008
BE-_ZZN\F=ZA=+—HILEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEN\FE ZETtF
Bt 5 FTEx FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBZHERE
New bank loans FIEIRITER 197,150 362,395
Repayment of trust receipt loans BEETREER (5,838) (1,132)
Repayment of bank loans EERITENR (286,629) (246,541)
Capital element of finance BMEMOE ST RH
lease payments &A1 (559) (581)
Advance from minority interests D BT R B 38,046 9,693
Proceeds from issue of RAFEBITHRND
new shares by the Company Ffr 1% #9 5k 18 400,064 1,298
Interest paid EREPSN (33,040) (33,614)
Interest element of finance BMEMOE ST RH
lease payments BB (51) (74)
Net cash inflow from BMEFDHCHS
financing activities mAH R 309,143 91,444
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERBAELEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE®EM CRL) (5,515) 27,520
Cash and cash equivalents FzBRe Rk
at beginning of year ReFMEIER 128,879 99,704
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net EEXSHHTE FHE 3,666 1,655
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF YEAR RE&%EEE 127,030 128,879
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERAELEERE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B2 DM
Cash and bank balances Be MRETERE 28 133,701 129,103
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 30 (6,671) (224)
127,030 128,879

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #£ Bk & =




BALANCE SHEET

BERER
31 March 2008
ZENF=ZA=+—8H

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ETLF
M 5E TET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries L ENGIE X 20 1,516,209 671,452
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables and deposits EmEWERER LS 768 15,083
Due from associates JE U B 2 N B BR 3R 159 159
Pledged time deposits EEATEHTR 28 41 40
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEE 28 63 25
Total current assets MENEEE 1,031 15,307
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Sundry creditors and accruals HiERERERREFEA (10,552) (5,417)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BB ZRITER 30 (3.324) (11,148)
Total current liabilities mENREE (13,876) (16,565)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBEEFE (12,845) (1,258)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EELEBERRBARE 1,503,364 670,194
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BB ZRITER 30 (8,629) (11,676)
Net assets BEFE 1,494,735 658,518
EQUITY B A
Issued capital B EITRA 33 114,412 74,664
Reserves it 35(b) 1,357,441 561,607
Proposed final dividend BEKREE 13 22,882 22,247
Total equity BT N {E 1,494,735 658,518
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong

BRK

Managing Director

BEFHKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 15 R & I 5
31 March 2008
ZEENF=A=1T—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in
investment holding, the manufacture, trading and
distribution of garments, property investment and
development, and the operations of hotel, restaurant
and food businesses.

During the year, the Group discontinued its garments
operation, further details of which are included in note
12 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and certain financial assets, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

DXAEHR

EXREER—HRBRESMEIZER
A A e A QA R P E E 75 Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda-

FRARENTBEBARERR HK
W BHRHW MENRERBERE
BEE ERRAGES

FRNAEBEERKKES FBEHR
PR EMTE12 -

mREE

AP BREDRRBRELB GG EMZ
BB REEN ([EAYHREE
A1) (hBeRMmEEEMBRELER &
BEHERN([FEGHER]) RE2E)
BEEERM G ERFEQBEA
ZEBERE URABELRAEME (BN
RPEAEZREMERETEREER
SN) e REA TG R E TILAETT 25 MR 3E 5
BH MBEBECHEREREOZTLE
fr ([F3EzT]) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 o o B At

31 March 2008
ZENFE=ZA=+—H
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2008. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of a subsidiary during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
This method involves allocating the cost of the business
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries. An acquisition
of minority interests is accounted for using the parent
entity extension method whereby the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the
net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to

new and revised accounting policies and additional

disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised

standards and interpretations has had no material effect

on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7

HKAS 1 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
Capital Disclosures

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2-Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users
of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and
the nature and extent of risks arising from those
financial instruments. The new disclosures are
included throughout the financial statements. While
there has been no effect on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group, comparative
information has been included/revised where
appropriate.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation

(c)

of Financial Statements — Capital
Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 45 to the
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied
to any arrangement in which the Group cannot
identify specifically some or all of the goods or
services received, for which equity instruments are
granted or liabilities (based on a value of the
Group’s equity instruments) are incurred by the
Group for a consideration, and which appears to
be less than the fair value of the equity instruments
granted or liabilities incurred. As the Company has
only issued equity instruments to the Group’s
employees for identified services provided in
accordance with the Company’s share option
scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on
these financial statements.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of

(e)

(f)

Embedded Derivatives

This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted
for as a derivative is the date that the Group first
becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows. As the Group
has no embedded derivative requiring separation
from the host contract, the interpretation has had
no effect on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial
Reporting and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1
April 2007, which requires that an impairment loss
recognised in a previous interim period in respect
of goodwill or an investment in either an equity
instrument classified as available for sale or a
financial asset carried at cost is not subsequently
reversed. As the Group had no impairment losses
previously reversed in respect of such assets, the
interpretation has had no impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and
Treasury Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an
employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities with the
Group. As the Group currently has no such
transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations’

Business Combinations?

Operating Segments’

Presentation of Financial
Statements’
Borrowing Costs’

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable
Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation’

Service Concession
Arrangements*

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction*

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2008
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 2 restricts the definition of “vesting condition”
to a condition that includes an explicit or implicit
requirement to provide services. Any other conditions
are non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into
account to determine that fair value of the equity
instruments granted. In the case that the award does
not vest as the result of a failure to meet a non-vesting
condition that is within the control of either the entity
or the counterparty, this must be accounted for as a
cancellation. The Group has not entered into share-based
payment schemes with non-vesting conditions attached
and, therefore, does not expect significant implications
on its accounting for share-based payments.

HKFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results
in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results. HKAS 27 requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or
loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well
as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 must be applied
prospectively and will affect future acquisitions and
transactions with minority interests.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided
by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1
April 2009.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET 23 BHEMGEMAREMNE BB TR

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 1 has been revised to separate owner and
non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity will include only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented
as a single line. In addition, the standard introduces the
statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items
of income and expense recognised in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognised income and
expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group is still evaluating whether it will
have one or two statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. As the Group’s current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirement of the revised
standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 32 has been revised to require certain puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising on
liquidation to be classified as equity if certain criteria are
met. The amendment to HKAS 1 requires disclosure of
certain information relating to puttable instruments
classified as equity. The Group does not expect these
amendments to impact the financial statements of the
Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-
private service concession arrangements to recognise the
consideration received or receivable in exchange for the
construction services as a financial asset and/or an
intangible asset, based on the terms of the contractual
arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an
operator shall apply existing HKFRSs to account for the
obligations and the rights arising from service concession
arrangements by which a government or a public sector
entity grants a contract for the construction of
infrastructure used to provide public services and/or for
the supply of public services. As the Group currently has
no such arrangements, the interpretation is unlikely to
have any financial impact on the Group.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits
granted to customers as part of a sales transaction are
accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transactions. The consideration received in the sales
transaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits
and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to the loyalty award credits is determined by
reference to their fair value and is deferred until the
awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund
or a reduction in future contributions in relation to a
defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an
asset, in particular, when a minimum finding requirement
exists.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award
credits and no defined benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 are not applicable to the Group
and therefore are unlikely to have any financial impact
on the Group.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the
adoption of HKFRS 8 may result in new or amended
disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not

have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group's share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject
to joint control, resulting in none of the participating
parties having unilateral control over the economic activity
of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled
entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly-controlled
entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included in
the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s interest
in a jointly-controlled entity is treated as non-current
assets and is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date
of acquisition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

24 FESHBEZBE (&)

& (&)

GEAHR—EERF-—A—HHAZ#E
HBAMELZEE

AUBREE BB IEREERGAE
ERBRAER M ARAFTE 21X
X ASRAE fa] RETRUE BB AT B o

BEHERIBECRAERSLERE"
W RERNEHREREDBRREES
AREMIRRE A SERERAE ZRT R =
A=+ —BAKEETFERERERNR-
BRERNANE EHEHELEZHE A
WEAE DEISEEERSELETX
BEHEHRRAWRAMEMSR 2 REESL
BErla TEEEEMEEXABESD
RHZEFETHETHS

BMEAFEEREERARACELE T (R
CEABETHS) IOz BEE-FR
SEABET (ReELETHES) RO Z
TRONKEER ERREBE BmER
EEETEN AR BAFEED-

MEaBAKTORSELEN CREEL
BuBea) MZEMZEHHOHLD H
EAEBETLEXB2BER BAHE
EBARZBER AR 2 REE EIL
BT FHEZEEREMLERB 2
MEELMREZREELEMANTE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED %=

75



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R & P R

31 March 2008
T \F=A=+—A

76

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30") in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated reserve
in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserve and is not recognised in the income statement
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an
interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in
(d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEZBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment, and where the cost of the item
can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Hotel properties Over the lease terms

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Buildings 2.5% -3%
Leasehold improvements 10% - 15%
Plant and machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and
ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent the rights to purchase
pre-determined lots of land pursuant to legal binding
agreements. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised to properties under
development as land costs in accordance with the future
acquisition patterns of these pre-determined lots of land
within the unexpired periods of the agreements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the income statement so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties
are transferred to properties held for sale.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded derivative
is required to be separated from the host contract when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any dividends on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policy set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an intergral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities
that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other two categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised
as a separate component of equity until the investment
is derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as “Other
income” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such securities are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s
length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; and a discounted cash flow analysis.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether

there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEZBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.

In relation to trade debtors and other receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of
the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made
for available-for-sale equity investments when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost or where other objective evidence of
impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” and “prolonged” requires judgement. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as the
share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEZBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of
the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase,
except in the case of a written put option (including a
cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset
measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise
price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade creditors, sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. The related interest expense is recognised within
“finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39
are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEZBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Export quotas

Temporary export quotas purchased are charged to the
income statement at the date when goods are shipped
under that quota category or upon expiry.

Export quotas allocated by the authorities in the countries
in which the Group operates are not capitalised as assets
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Income arising from the sale of export quotas is credited
to the income statement in the year of disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value on an individual property basis.
Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable
borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the prevailing market price.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEZBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued) FrB®H (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable FTEERTEREERLNERRAELER
temporary differences, except: HAEE WA TERAIN:

where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

o  EMEEREAEB AR EXAEINIF
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accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences e REMBAR BELRIREEART
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates ERBEBIERNMEREZEME - A
and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal fied L By = B 48 [0 7 B ] AT #4501 e T
of the temporary differences can be controlled and e = R A T8 R A% 2R 7] 88 1§ T ge B Bl
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it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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REATHRERZR KRPBRBEE
RASBRBABR 2 EET B IEERH
FERR g A AR - HE AT B R FI4h:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

92

where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet
date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods and quotas, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods and quotas sold;

(b) income from the restaurant and food businesses,
at the point of sale to customers;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEZBE (&)

94

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) income from the sale of completed properties, on
the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales
contracts;

(d) rental income, in the period in which the properties
are let out and on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms;

(e) hotel and other service income, in the period in
which such services are rendered; and

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group'’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details
of which are given in note 34. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of
the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award
(the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 January
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January 2005.

Other employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective
employees in the following year. An accrual is made at
the balance sheet date for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees
and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in central
pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”) operated by
respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
covered payroll to the CP Schemes to fund their benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the CP
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contributions
under the CP Schemes. Contributions under the CP
Schemes are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CP
Schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHREZBE (®)

POLICIES (continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum of
association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional
currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
and, their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are included
in a separate component of equity. On disposal of a
foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised
in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,

However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Therefore, the Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under
a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
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AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management on
determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties.
During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under
development included in current assets if the properties
are intended for sale after its completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as construction in progress
included in non-current assets if the properties are
intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the
properties held for sale are transferred to properties held
for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at each balance sheet date.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2008 was
HK$41,399,000 (2007: HK$8,721,000). More details are
given in note 18.

Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions. The cost of these equity-settled transactions
with employees is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted, using assumptions
including expected volatility and risk-free interest rate.
Such cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the service
conditions are fulfilled.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The Group engaged Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
("Vigers"), independent professionally qualified valuers,
to perform the valuation of the investment properties of
the Group at the balance sheet date. The valuations were
carried out as follows:

Vigers valued the properties using discounted cash flow
analysis which discounts the projected free cash flow
generated from the properties at an appropriate market
rate of return to arrive at the present values of the
properties. They also cross-checked the values with the
available market sales comparables using the direct
comparison method.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 was HK$1,191,683,000
(2007: HK$1,059,297,000).

Estimate of fair value of intangible assets

The Group engaged Vigers, independent professionally
qgualified valuers, to perform the valuation of the
intangible assets of the Group at the date of acquisition
of a subsidiary. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. The carrying
amount of intangible assets of the Group as at 31 March
2008 was HK$533,559,000 (2007: Nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2008 was
HK$9,999,000 (2007: HK$8,524,000). Further details are
contained in note 32 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to properties held for sale
upon completion. An apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the income statement upon the
recognition of the sales of properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are
accrued by the Group based on management’s best
estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded as
the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to phases
are allocated to individual phases bases on the estimated
saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. Summary details
of the business segments are as follows:

Continuing operations

- the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged
in restaurant and hotel operations and the provision
of food and beverage services;

- the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties
and the leasing of commercial and residential
premises; and

"others”

- the segment comprises, principally,

investment holding, and other operations.
Discontinued operation
- the garment segment is engaged in the

manufacture, trading and distribution of garment
products.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments based
on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the
assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss)

and certain asset,

liability and expenditure

information for the Group's business segments for

ATRBE_ZFZNFR_FTTLF
A=t HLEFEAKREERB LR
2w (BE) RETEE:

the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007. BERIHZER-
Group &
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRER FRAEHR
Restaurant, Property
food and investment
hotel and development Others Eliminations Total Garment Consolidated
BB RRRERE HERERYE £t B #it R% Ga
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000
ZEENE ZFRLEF CBRNF CFTHE CBINF CTTHEF CEINF CBTHF CIENF CTRLF CFENE CBRLF CRINE CBRLF
Fén TRr FEn TR FEx TEx Tz TEn TR TExr  TEx  FEr TEn TEn
Segment revenue: AERE:
Sales to external BETFHREF
customers 423,978 348,105 267,481 47,112 - - - - 691459 395217 153,860 260,594 845319 655811
Intersegment sales AERBEZHE 770 742 5,943 7,609 = - (6713  (8351) = = = = = =
Other revenue E s 3,355 1,070 120,811 78,625 1,057 1,001 - - 125223 80,696 5911 9,855 131,134 90,551
Total At 428,103 349917 394235 133346 1,057 1,001 (6,713) (8,351) 816,682 475913 159,771 270,449 976,453 746,362
Segment results ARER 68,895 47308 164,375 76,392 (1,185) 528 (770) - 231315 124228 (39,821) (4,853) 191,494 119,375
Unallocated AARLERA
corporate income 5,497 2,863
Unallocated AARLEH
corporate expenses (41,483)  (32,793)
Finance costs BHBRX (33,091 (33,688)
Share of profits and EEBERR
losses of associates wAREE = - 169,630 338,014 - - - - 169,630 338014 - - 169,630 338,014
Profit before tax B AER 292,047 393771
Tax RE (45,643)  (49,874)
Profit for the year RER T 246,404 343,897
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEHR (8)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥¥58 (®)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
KEEH FERER
Restaurant, Property investment
food and hotel and development Others Total Garment Consolidated
B RERER HERERER it & X &4
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
ZEINF ZBRtF -SINE CTRtF EINE CTREF CESNE CETtEF —IENF -ETHEF -IEINF CETHE
Térn THr TExz  TAxr Tz FEn  fEx  TEnr  TEx  FAzr  TEr  TEn
Segment assets ABEE 481,196 282,995 2,370,151 1,310,075 23,196 35898 2,874,543 1,628,968 11,307 113,846 2,885,850 1,742,814
Interests in associates e NE R 7 (6) 766,897 475821 (2,894) (2,402) 763,996 473413 - 18 76399 473431
Unallocated assets AAREE 590,664 122,235
Total assets 4EE 4,240,510 2,338,480
Segment liabilities PEBE 93,821 69,250 134,583 4211 2,564 6,277 230,968 119,738 2,419 21565 233,447 141,303
Unallocated liabilities KoRAR 1,155,183 794,676
Total liabilities Bag 1,388,630 935,979
Other seqment EhHEER:
information:
Depreciation il
- segment -38 12,897 10,210 9,448 6,111 - - 22,345 16,321 1,928 2,570 24,273 18,891
- unallocated -kPE 1,602 2,045
25,875 20,936
Capital expenditure BALH
- segment -38 144,898 25,606 4,154 16,683 - - 149,052 42,289 1,740 2,614 150,792 44,903
- unallocated -kAR 1,619 105
152,411 45,008
Impairment losses RARERERL
recognised in the HEER:
income statement:
Impairment of trade EYESRZAE
debtors 1311 369 - 4541 - - 1311 4910 3 - 1,384 4910
Reversal of impairment  FEAER 3
of trade debtors AEDE (819) (203) (314) - - - (1) (203) - (78)  (1133) (281)
Impairment of other EfbEWGE
recelvables A 1172 - 8n - - - 2,004 - 11,009 8 13,053 8
Write-down of HAFEE
inventories to net TERFE
realisable value - - - - - - - - 1,462 1,953 1,462 1,953
14,766 6,590
Changes in fair value of ~ REME
investment properties DTEER - - 117,883 78213 - - 17883 78,213 - - 117883 78213
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEHR (8)

(b) Geographical segments (b) #biE o 38
The following table presents revenue, certain asset NTREBZE_ZZNFR_TZTLF
and expenditure information for the Group’s AT+ RUEFEAEEME S
geographical segments for the years ended 31 W ETEERIE ZER-

March 2008 and 2007.

Group A& E
America South Africa Hong Kong Mainland China Others Consolidated
EY| (£ R REKE 4] &8

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
SRINE ZFRLF CRRNF ZRTEF CRENF ZTTLF SRNF ZTTLF SRENF ZFRLF SRRNF ZFRLR
Tén Thn TEx TExr fEm TEx TEx  TEx TER Tz TEx  TER

Segment revenue: AN
Sales to external HEF
customers MNREP 54033 113,137 81796 123724 4,249 37,878 651,406 360238 15835 20,834 845319 655811

Other geographical il
information: Eh:
Segment assets PEEE 2,361 8,892 8329 30076 137,909 161

o

3 2,736,194 1,541,340 1,057 1,493 2,885,850 1,742,814

Capital expenditure: BAX:
- segment 58 57 112 1,584 544 1,289 172 147,862 44,075 - - 150,792 44,903
- unallocated v 1,619 105

152,411 45,008
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5. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for goods returned and trade discounts,
income from the rendering of services, proceeds from
the sale of properties, and gross rental income received
and receivable.

Revenue from the following activities is included in

iy %8

WH N RAEEZEXE EREER (B
HBRERERITAN) MBERFERME
HERB A HE W E W et AR B W% &
Yo iH & W A R EY B W s o

THEBHMFREEFFAERE:

turnover:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENEF —ZETLF
B 5 TH T FHE T
(E75))
Revenue W 2=
Income from the hotel, BEBERBEMEBKA
restaurant and food businesses 423,978 348,105
Gross rental income e WAL= 42,070 32,412
Proceeds from sale of properties &Y EFT1SIA 225,411 14,700
Attributable to continuing REEWRERERY
operations reported BB A
in the consolidated
income statement 691,459 395,217
Sales of goods attributable to FIFEBELEER
a discontinued operation FEIEEEE M 12 153,860 260,594
845,319 655,811
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

B B Al 2 R

AEERBAENEMER, (GEA)

(crediting):
Group
rEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
ZEBENF —ETLF
Bt 5 FTH T FET
(&%)
Cost of inventories sold and EEFER
services provided BERRHRFG 2 KA 562,709 441,211
Depreciation e 15 25,875 20,936
Minimum lease payments BIBLEROM T2
under operating leases T EBFREES
for land and buildings 17,988 18,054
Auditors’ remuneration % LA BN & 3,076 2,253
Employee benefits expense BERFZH
(excluding directors’ (T B EH 8
remuneration (note 8))*: ZEZME) "
Wages and salaries TERS© 82,771 93,519
Equity-settled share VAR 0 48 B iz 0
option expense REREH 9,335 1,233
Pension scheme contributions & k£ ft
(defined contribution (FEE | AKEHED
scheme) 722 945
92,828 95,697

&)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. FBRBATEF (%)
Group
rEH
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENEF —ZETLF
Bt 5 TH T FHETT
(&E351))
Foreign exchange differences, net JE ¥ =38 )%E 1,207 1,686
Impairment of trade debtors JE W RO B 27 1,384 4,910
Reversal of impairment of trade [ Uz 58 & [@ B
debtors 27 (1,133) (281)
Impairment of other receivables  E tb & U Rl B 13,053 8
Write-down of inventories WRFEZEAEEFE
to net realisable value 1,462 1,953
Fair value gains on financial EATEFABEREZ
assets at fair value through TREEZ
profit or loss N ERE (886) (1,561)
Changes in fair value of BEMENFELR
investment properties 16 (117,883) (78,213)
Quota expenses Bl %8 & 65 410
Gross rental income e WAL= (42,070) (32,412)
Direct operating expenses KEMERS
(including repairs and WAz B
maintenance) arising on LB
rental-earning investment (BiE#E
properties RIRE) 1,481 1,705
(40,589) (30,707)
Bank interest income RITH B A (5,797) (2,863)
Loss on disposal of HERHEERE ZEE
available-for-sale investments - 3,621
Loss on disposal of items of HEWME BE K
property, plant and equipment R EE 5,128 228
Loss on disposal of investment LEREME BB
properties 169 _
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — KB AR ZEE 37 9,083 =
Quota income fig R A (488) (113)
# Inclusive of an amount of HK$64,464,000 (2007: # BRI BAHETERIBHRBK R
HK$81,467,000) classified under cost of inventories sold 64,464,0007% T (=T ZT 4 :81,467,000
and services provided. BIT) o

EHERNEH-EELER-_FENF2
BEHED aEARERERB AR
B ARE-

The disclosures presented in this note for the years ended
31 March 2007 and 2008 include those amounts charged/
credited in respect of the discontinued operation.
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FINANCE COSTS 7. MBEAX
Group
rEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENE —EELF
B 3 FTHE T FAET
(E7))
Interest in respect of: B
Bank loans, overdrafts and WTEF BEXRAR
other loans wholly repayable hERNBHEEREZ
within five years HEMER 39,601 33,614
Finance leases BEBELN 51 74
Total interest expense on FERBERRZARE
financial liabilities not at fair FEzEmAaEZ
value through profit or loss MEFRX A% 39,652 33,688
Less: Finance cost capitalised B A EF B 25 (6,561) =
33,091 33,688
Attributable to a discontinued ERFEXEB ZEIGE D 12
operation 688 12,104
Attributable to continuing iz &l zmRE2®W
operations reported in the FREEB 2 ELEH
consolidated income statement 32,403 21,584
33,091 33,688

&)
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EEME

REEEBARIMBRARES TR
AI(TEMRA) REEREEDIE 16115
BREESMEWT:

Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELF
FET T T
Fees e 549 400
Other emoluments: E B <
Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind e REREDHN 5,830 5,390
Bonuses paid and payables* BT R ERTEAL* 10,870 17,350
Employee share option benefits 1 B IR F = 5,882 4,552
Pension scheme contributions R IRHRET & 154 154
22,736 27,446
23,285 27,846
* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus @ RABHITESREG 2IEARKEHME

payments which are approved by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group’s current year
profit and individual performance.

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options which has
been recognised in the income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

8. EEME (&

(a) BYFHITES

AERENBLFERTESECEN

directors during the year were as follows: S
Employee
share option
Fees benefits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3=
BE i IR R T 22 R
FHET FET FHET
2008 —ZEENF
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles %58 %5 7t & 100 = 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B EEE 100 - 100
Mr. Wong See King* =R E 61 - 61
Mr. Yau Wing Keung*  Jfsk5R 4 * - - =
261 - 261
2007 —EELE
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles %5 B %5 5t & 100 71 171
Mr. Yau Wing Keung i & v 100 71 171
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam B R E 100 71 171
300 213 513
# Appointed as an independent non-executive director # RZZEZELFNAZT=ZHEZHE
on 23 August 2007 REILIFNTES
* Resigned as an independent non-executive director *

on 23 August 2007

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2007: Nil).

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## BX %
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME (®H
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITEERFHITESE
directors
Salaries, Employee

allowances Bonuses share Pension
and benefits paid and option scheme Total
Fees in kind payables benefits contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

He 2R 2R E& Bhe

BE RENNE EATEL BRENE  FEHMR  HEEE
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

2008 =t 2183
Executive directors: BTES:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung ENELE - 2,250 4,380 - 52 6,682
Mr. Ma Kai Yum BN E - 1,719 4,380 - 52 6,151
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong RERELE - 1,681 2,110 - 50 3,841
- 5,650 10,870 - 154 16,674

Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Zhang Huagiao® RIBEE 188 - - 5,882 - 6,070
Mr. Yip Hing Chung EBR%E 100 180 - - = 280
288 5,830 10,870 5,882 154 23,024
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)

8. EEME (&

(b) BTEERFHAUTESE (&)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Employee
Bonuses share Pension
paid and option scheme Total

Fees in kind payables benefits contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k-4 BN R k8 Bihe

Be REWAE EATL BRENZE  GEHER  #Wess
THT FET FAT FAT FAT FET

2007 “EBtE

Executive directors: WaES:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung ENEEL - 2,243 6,250 1,423 52 9,968
Mr. Ma Kai Yum BNk - 1,712 6,250 1,423 52 9,437
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REREE - 1,255 4,850 1,423 50 7,578
- 5,210 17,350 4,269 154 26,983

Non-executive director: FRTES
Mr. Yip Hing Chung EERELE 100 180 - 70 - 350
100 5,390 17,350 4,339 154 27,333
# Appointed as a non-executive director on 21 April # RZZZELFOMA-+—HEZHE

2007

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

RIERTES

RERNRBERNBHEARESTRESL
REREENE-
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ O
REMUNERATION

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included three (2007: three) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2007: two)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as

TfuFMES Z2EE

AEEzRAURSHEERE=U(=F
THE M) EF EHFMABHIN L
KIS - RERN HBMA (ZTTLF:
ML) EEFHNRSFREENHESFIBTN
T

follows:

Group

KEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EELF
TET TFET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 285 & E % F 25 1,948 2,329
Bonuses paid and payables B RERIEA 1,166 -
Pension scheme contributions RN FRGET S - -
3,114 2,329

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

FEFNESFEEZCFHBEL T :

follows:
Number of employees
EEA™

2008 2007
—EBENF —ETLF
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 500,000 7T — 1,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T — 1,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,500,000 7T 1 -
2 2
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10.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits

assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates

of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

10. H1\E

BENGSRIDREFEARRREL 2G5
ERR BB E175%TH (ZEZ+
F:17.5%) - BINE IR FERR B 7 2 B IR
DIREARERLEMEER 2RITEN 2
BLEZRTHREAEREE

Group
rEE
2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENF ZETtF
Bt 5 FHE T FiE T
(&%)
Group: %
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &%
Charge for the year AFEEXH - 1,012
Current — Mainland China BV ER — AR B K
Corporate income tax PEMEH 23,380 7,185
Land appreciation tax T IEE T 12,186 =
Current — Overseas BNV ER — /g Hh
Charge for the year NEE T H = 4
Overprovision in prior years LART S R RE B 1 - (295)
Deferred tax expense LR TE S 32 10,077 41,968
Total tax charge for the year REEHEBIEZH 45,643 49,874
Represented by: K&
Tax credit attributable to FIHFELCEEMLZ
a discontinued operation I8 U Z= 12 (986) (3,676)
Tax charge attributable to RIFERERERZ
continuing operations SEICERIG 2
reported in the consolidated BIA X
income statement 46,629 53,550
Total tax charge for the year REEHEBIEZH 45,643 49,874
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10. TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e.,
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as

follows:

10. BEIE (&)

AN R ARERBAS A 2 BIE S (5
RARBREKRE D 2MERREBAE
BRZEEMRTE) BREBRERXRGFTHE
ZHEASHZHE URERB X (AVEE
BR) EEREN R R

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FET FAT

Profit before tax B B¢ A1 i A 292,048 393,771
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT KA E 2 H 1B 51,108 17.5 68,910 17.5
Lower tax rate of H A B R 2 BB =R

other countries (1,700) (0.6) (1,175) (0.3)
Higher tax rate of H B R 2B = &

other countries 8,319 2.8 1,497 0.4
Adjustments in respect of #EDER B 1A (I

current tax of LART 5 [E A &

previous periods - - (295) -
Profits and losses attributable & 1f B & A 7] )& 7

to an associate K &R (29,685) (10.2) (59,153) (15.0)
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (955) (0.3) (642) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible TNAI B 2 X

for tax 8,761 3.0 2,435 0.6
Land appreciation tax T I E R 4,143 1.4 = =
Effect of change in tax rate MEREFHZE - = 32,612 8.3
Tax losses utilised RKEBARFEEE A

from previous periods IR 18 (4,797) (1.6) (5,004) (1.3)
Tax losses not recognised AR ZHIERE 10,449 3.6 10,689 2.7
Tax charge at the Group's RAEEZERBE

effective rate AHEZBIEXH 45,643 15.6 49,874 12.7

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting
to HK$48,345,000 (2007: HK$122,238,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” on the face

of the consolidated income statement.
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TENFE=A=+—H
11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BATRERFE AEBGZR
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of HE_TZ N \F=-A=+—HLEFE &4
the parent for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a AIREREARGEE &N BEEF
profit of HK$10,312,000 (2007: HK$37,386,000) which 10,312,000 7t (=& =&+ 4 :37,386,000
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the B ERARAUBREP AREE
Company (note 35(b)). (BKf#E35(b)) °
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. kFEXEK
Pursuant to a written resolution passed on 27 July 2007, EHKKEBZTIHHFBURME B

the Board decided to cease the Group’s garment business
in view of the intense competition and thin profit margin
encountered by the garment business.

On 31 October 2007, the Group disposed of 80% equity
interest in Amica Fashion Company (Proprietary) Limited
("Amica Fashion”). Amica Fashion is engaged in the
manufacture, trading and distribution of garments and
is a separate business segment in South Africa.

B’ %'J/FEJ EXRER-_ZETLFLA-t+t
BRERNEE ZKKRER-

RZZEZ+FT+A=+—H AEEHE
Amica Fashion Company (Proprietary)
Limited ( [ Amica Fashion] ) Z 80%# 25
Amica Fashion R FER M ER K EE - &

&)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12.

The results for the discontinued operation for the two
years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

RBEXRE (9

FHBEBRE_TT/\F=RA=+—H
RZZEZ+F=ZA=+T—HZEREFTH

R
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$’'000
—EENF —EELF
FE FHT
Revenue I 2= 153,860 260,594
Cost of sales 8 6 B AR (142,555) (222,647)
Gross profit EH 11,305 37,947
Other income and gains H b U A R Wz 5,911 9,855
Selling and distribution expenses DHENEERY (10,436) (18,199)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (22,210) (31,252)
Other expenses HE X (15,309) (3,204)
Finance costs B 7% X (688) (12,104)
Loss on disposal of Amica Fashion H & Amica Fashionz E518 (9,083) =
Loss before tax from
the discontinued operation R BEBEKRIAIEIE (40,510) (16,957)
Tax I8 986 3,676
Loss for the year from REFFFBBEXEKER
the discontinued operation (39,524) (13,281)
Attributable to: FEAL
Equity holders of the Company [SFNEIEEGESES DN (42,445) (17,946)
Minority interests DR RS 2,921 4,665
Loss for the year from RNEBIFFEXEBEBR
the discontinued operation (39,524) (13,281)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation
are as follows:

12. FFEEK (B

REFFEEBNRSFREWN T

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—z2NF —TT i
T & T FETT
Operating activities WEE 11,600 (11,254)
Investing activities HE G (8.677) (1,481)
Financing activities A& R & = =
Net cash inflow/(outflow) FEERA GRE) 2,923 (12,735)
2008 2007
—EENEF —ZETELF

Loss per share: BREBEAE:

Basic, from the discontinued operation
Diluted, from the discontinued operation

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from
the discontinued operation are based on:

—EX AERSEXRD
—HE BERERD

(HK4.01 centsi& L) (HK2.41 centsiAll)
(HK3.93 centsi& i) (HK2.35 centsi&flll)

BRFFEXBEABERBEBEE
R

2008 2007
—EEN\F —EFLF

Loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent from
the discontinued operation

ERBEREAREER

HK$(42,445,000) 7t HK$(17,946,000)7% 7T

Weighted average number of FARAR .:Jr“’_ﬂx§$

ordinary shares in issue during BiEzEETERR

the year used in the basic loss MmEFHEEAR

per share calculation 1,058,914,904 745,181,877
Weighted average number of REsTESRBEBE 2

ordinary shares used in the diluted loss Al #E 715 & 3@ A% & B

per share calculation 1,080,653,672 764,962,926

&)
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELHF
TExT T T
Interim — HK1 cent (2007: HK1 cent) FH -SRI BR1AEL
per ordinary share (ZEZLF:FR1EBW) 11,141 7,456
Proposed final - HK2 cents EEAH-SRET®R2E
(2007: HK2 cents) (ZZEZTLF 8RB
per ordinary share 22,882 22,247
34,023 29,703

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’'s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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NE=ZB=+—8

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. &
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 2

PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

/N
|

A (

=

BREARNNEFERNGAER

AEERESAEAREER
)

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENEF —ZET+F
FHET FHET
(&%)
Earnings BF
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary BRETEEREARRERN
equity holders of the parent, (E#8) 282
used in the basic earnings LRREREA
per share calculation JE A 4 A
From continuing operations REFEED 271,355 354,616
From a discontinued operation REFHFEEY (42,445) (17,946)
228,910 336,670
Number of shares
R4 #E
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Shares B
Weighted average number of FANRARHESREREF 2
ordinary shares in issue during BT E MR N T8
the year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 1,058,914,904 745,181,877
Effect of dilution — weighted average DX
number of ordinary shares: —EERIMETHE:
Share options i IR 21,738,768 19,781,049
1,080,653,672 764,962,926
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. X -BERRE

Group NE
Furniture,
Hotel landand  Leasehold  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction
properties  buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE &
IHR E BER %E
BENE BT £8 Ha Rk BEf  ERIE ag
Tén Thn Thn TEn Thn TEn Thn T#n
31 March 2008 Z2ENFZA=1-H
At 31 March 2007 and RZZEtE=A=1-HR
at 1 April 2007: RZFTLENWA-R:
Cost or valuation BRAERGE 70922 90,980 94,848 60,355 63,776 12,320 2,145 395,346
Accumulated depreciation ZHFER
and impairment A (3,845) (35,463) (64,187) (37,680) (44,705) (7,980) = (193,860)
Net carrying amount REFE 67,077 55,517 30,661 22,675 19,071 4,340 2,145 201,486
At 1 April 2007, net of RZES+ERA—-R"
accumulated depreciation BNk 24
and impairment mERAME 67,077 55,517 30,661 22,675 19,071 4,340 2,145 201,486
Additions AE - 1,407 5,645 2,844 5,976 4,582 131,957 152,411
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) YR B2 ] (fi36) = - = = 270 2217 = 2,487
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37)  HEMBAF (H537) - (281) = (2,986) (195) (916) = (4,378)
Depreciation provided FRHERE
during the year (note 6) (Mite) (1,974) (1,675) (12,826) (1,71 (5,978) (1,711) - (25,875)
Disposals/write off e/ - - (154) (4,311 (4,994) (813) = (10,272)
Transfers g8 - 13,747 - - - - (13,391) 356
Exchange realignment ERAE 6,467 2,648 2,075 856 1,686 590 7431 21,753
At 31 March 2008, RZEE\F=fA=1+-H"
net of accumulated Bk 24
depreciation and impairment NERFE 71,570 71,363 25,401 17,367 15,836 8,289 128,142 337,968
At 31 March 2008: RZZENE=A=1-H:
Cost or valuation BRAEGE 77,887 108,270 106,649 19,702 49,649 14,778 128,142 505,077
Accumulated depreciation 2EHER
and impairment HE (6,317) (36,907) (81,248) (2,335 (33,813 (6,489) - (167,109)
Net carrying amount REFE 71,570 71,363 25,401 17,367 15,836 8,289 128,142 337,968
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B S & I 5
31 March 2008

TENF=ZA=1+—H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -BERRK®E (&)
(continued)
Group &
Furniture,
Hotel land and  Leasehold  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction
properties  buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE B
IHR nE BER %E
BENE BT £8 W& Ri% EH EEIR ag
Tén Thn Thn TEn Thn TEn Thn T#En
31 March 2007 ZE22tEZA=+-H
At 31 March 2006 and i
at 1 April 2006 RZET ENA-R:
Cost or valuation BERAELEE 67,846 90,140 64,621 60,718 50,841 10,938 - 345,104
Accumulated depreciation ZHFER
and impairment HE (2,118) (33,562) (52,575) (37,022) (38,872) (6,868) = (171,017)
Net carrying amount REFE 65,728 56,578 12,046 23,696 11,969 4,070 - 174,087
At 1 April 2006, net of RZEE ERA-R"
accumulated depreciation BNk 24
and impairment mERAME 65,728 56,578 12,046 23,696 11,969 4,070 = 174,087
Additions HE - - 27,410 888 12,577 2,043 2,090 45,008
Disposalsfwrite off e/ - - (530) (319) (833) (359) - (2,041)
Depreciation provided FRHERR
during the year (note 6) (Wiste) (1,591) (1,757) (9,247) (1,689) (5,237) (1,415) = (20,936)
Exchange realignment ERAE 2,940 696 982 99 595 1 55 5,368
At 31 March 2007, RZEZ+E=A=1+-A"
net of accumulated Bk 25t
depreciation and impairment WERR®E 67,077 55,517 30,661 22,675 19,071 4,340 2,145 201,486
At 31 March 2007: RZEZtF=A=+-H:
Cost or valuation BRAEGE 70,922 90,980 94,848 60,355 63,776 12,320 2,145 395,346
Accumulated depreciation 2FHFER
and impairment B (3,845) (35,463) (64,187) (37,680) (44,705) (7,980) - (193,860)
Net carrying amount REFE 67,077 55,517 30,661 22,675 19,071 4,340 2,145 201,486
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31 March 2008
T NF=A=+—H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME-BERKRE (B

(continued)

The net book value of the Group’s fixed assets held under
finance leases included in the total amount of motor
vehicles at 31 March 2008, amounted to HK$ 1,944,000
(2007: HK$879,000).

Certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at 31 March 1995, by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at an open market value based on their existing
use. Since 1995, no further valuations of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as
the Group has relied upon the exemption granted under
the transitional provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS
16, from the requirement to carry out further revaluations
of its property, plant and equipment which were stated
at valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings and hotel
properties been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, their carrying
amounts would have been approximately HK$29,905,000
(2007: HK$30,644,000).
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B 15 & B 5
31 March 2008
ZZENF=HAH=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. X -BERRK®E (&)
(continued)
As at the balance sheet date, the Group is in the process REEE B A5 B 1E [ A B K BE A B BT
of obtaining the land use right certificate for a piece of BEREBEES T L2 L FE R -AEE
land relating to the construction in progress located in ZEFRBRE TR Z G5 LA
Mainland China from the relevant government authorities. FAER R R 2R TR EAS
The directors of the Company consider that the relevant
land use right certificate will be obtained upon the full
payment of the purchase consideration in accordance
with the terms of the land acquisition agreements.
At 31 March 2008, certain of the Group’s property, plant RZZEZENF=ZA=1+—RH A5EHEEL
and equipment with a total carrying value of approximately BRMEE 117,376,000 T (Z T T+
HK$117,376,000 (2007: HK$112,992,000) were pledged %:112,992,00087T) 2 & T WER
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group RBEERM URE—RRBITEE (K
(note 42). 42) °
The cost/valuation of the Group’s land and buildings and AEBRMEIHEFHE Dz L RiE
hotel properties by geographical location and the terms FRBEBEMENKABESEESTET:
of the leases are as follows:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZETtF
FTHE T FHTT
Medium term leasehold land and REBHEZ TR
buildings situated in Hong Kong, BFHEHEL
at 1995 valuation BR—ANAFHEHE 35,245 35,245
Medium term leasehold land and AR B KEE 2 i RAETF
buildings situated in Mainland RERFE 49 B ANME
China, at cost 59,313 41,691
Medium term hotel properties situated 7 F Bl KFE 2 B JE ¥ ¥
in Mainland China, at cost RERFR 49 B AN(E 77,887 70,922
Freehold land and buildings RGNz T RAEF
situated overseas, at cost KAERE KAE 13,712 14,044
186,157 161,902
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REY*
Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EEN\E —EELF
FTET FHTT
Carrying amount at 1 April, REUA—RBZREE:
at valuation B{HE 1,059,297 974,783
Net gain from a fair value BEATFEFAREZFAF (KsEe)
adjustment (note 6) 117,883 78,213
Transfer from owner-occupied property 3 2 = 15 FB 4 3 & 2,473 =
Disposals g (3.774) =
Exchange realignment b 5 5 B 15,804 6,301
Balance at 31 March, at valuation =A=1+—H#&&% KEHE 1,191,683 1,059,297
Analysis by geographical location: i & 5
Hong Kong BE 78,054 65,744
Mainland China B K B 1,113,629 993,553
1,191,683 1,059,297

The Group’s investment properties, of which

BYBXGEMERTEEFGERER

HK$1,063,641,000 (2007: HK$947,651,000) are held
under medium term leases and HK$128,042,000 (2007:
HK$111,646,000) under long term leases, were revalued
on 31 March 2008 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, on
an open market, existing use basis. The investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 40(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2008, the Group's investment
properties with a value of HK$850,530,000 (2007:
HK$787,780,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 42).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on pages 193 to 195.
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31 March 2008
TENF=ZRAR=+—H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

17. LA EHE

Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ZETEF
TH T FHETT
Carrying amount at 1 April MR A—HERAEE 1,120 1,152
Additions NE 135,986 -
Recognised during the year RERNER (32) (32)
Carrying amount at 31 March MR=RA=+—HKRHEHE 137,074 1,120
Current portion included MBI B A EERR
in debtors, deposits and e M TEMN FRIE
prepayments (32) (32)
Non-current portion JEREYEB 1D 137,042 1,088

The leasehold land is held under medium term leases
and is situated in Mainland China.

At the balance sheet date, the Group is in the process of
obtaining the land use right certificates of certain land
with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$135,986,000 (2007: Nil) from the relevant
government authorities. The directors of the Company
consider that the relevant land use right certificates will
be obtained upon the full payment of the purchase
consideration in accordance with the terms of the land
acquisition agreements.

HE AR BMBEORA LR P BEARE-

REER AEBLEBRBT#EFIRESE
Tz THFERE G50 FREELD
135,986,000 T (ZEZTLF &) - AR
RESERIIBBELHRBEHRZ 2K E
Bz T ERAIEEREE8ATBERER
AEG-

&)
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the Group applied transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that

B HRE

ZENFE=ZA=+—H
18. GOODWILL 18. &
Group KEE
HK$'000
FH& T
31 March 2008 R-—EBEENF=A=+—H
At 1 April 2007: RZZEZLFMA—R:
Cost N 12,384
Accumulated impairment 25HRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREFE 8,721
Cost at 1 April 2007, net of RZEELFOA—HKA
accumulated impairment R EHRE 8,721
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) Weg — MW E AR (FsE36) 12,080
Acquisition of minority interests (note 36) Wi/ NEURR R A s (M9 RE36) 20,598
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENF=A=+—H 41,399
At 31 March 2008: RZZEZENF=RA=1+—8:
Cost B 7R 45,062
Accumulated impairment 25HRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount REFE 41,399
31 March 2007: R-—EZELtHF=A=+—A8:
At 1 April 2006 and 31 March 2007: RZZEZEREFOMA—ABR
—EE+HF=ZA=+—8:
Cost B 7R 12,384
Accumulated impairment 2:tRE (3,663)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,721
As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, HOEREN T2 4T AEBERE

A3 2 BREBTE % ER

permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated
against consolidated reserves.

The amounts of goodwill remaining in consolidated
reserves, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior
to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, were
HK$86,230,000 as at 31 March 2007 and 2008. The
amount of goodwill was stated at its cost.
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B 15 R & I 5
31 March 2008
ZEENF=A=1T—H

18. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have
been allocated to the following cash-generating units,
which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

. restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit; and

. property investment and development cash-
generating unit.

Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the restaurant, food and hotel
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 8% (2007: 8%) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 4% (2007: 4%) which is the same as the
long term average growth rate of the industry.

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the property investment and
development cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 6%
(2007: Nil).

18. & (#)

BE Z R ERR

HEAFGHEECHEETRGHESES
B ESRERZ D BAERERR:

e BB RmRBERSELBM R

e YERENRERASELFEM-

BE- BERREEBELTELEN

HE R RBEIREA BN 2 o] W B 85
ERBERRAEEABMEZAFHRYB
BEFERRESREBANFECFEFABEET-
ReREBNEBRA2TRELRES% (ZEE
+t&F:8%) RFATEREAREZTBBRFIN
BEEA% (ZETLF:4%)  HEZTE
WREIFHEREAR-

WERERBRERACELE N

MERERBERRELBM Z T KEHK
BMORBRBESREEASI EZ AFHM
BEECHARERERAFEZEREE
E-RERMERABRZIFREERER6% (=
TTLFE)o
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31 March 2008
ZENEFE=ZRA=+—H
18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. & (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) BEZBENR (#)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of B EHESEAT —BAREELEN
the cash-generating unit is as follows: wmR
Restaurant, Property investment
food and hotel and development Total
B RAREE NE-RERER aE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENE ZBTEF ZZENF ZZTtF ZBBN\E Z—TRLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TR FET TR TEn
Carrying amount of goodwill 8,721 8,721 32,678 - 41,399 8,721

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit
and the property investment and development cash-
generating unit for 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.
The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.
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31 March 2008

TEENF=ZA=1+—H
19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Hitt B\ EE
Group
rEH
Note HK$'000
B 5 FET
31 March 2008 —EENF=ZHA=+—H
Arising from acquisition of RZEZENF=A=+—H
a subsidiary and balance as Wi —HNBAREE 24
at 31 March 2008 36 533,559
At 31 March 2008: R-ZEBEZENF=ZRA=+—8:
Cost B AR 533,559
Accumulated impairment RETRE -
Net carrying amount REFE 533,559
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. EMEB A RER
Company
KA F
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELHF
FHE T FH&E T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETM S LK ARE 61,990 61,990
Due from subsidiaries N ENGIE G 1,660,494 750,610
Due to subsidiaries JE B B 2 Rl 3 E (197,042) (138,272)
1,525,442 674,328
Impairment” mE? (9.233) (2,876)
1,516,209 671,452
#

An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due

from subsidiaries with a total carrying amount of
HK$21,520,000 (2007: HK$10,660,000) because certain
subsidiaries have suffered losses over the years and the

amounts are considered to be not recoverable.

The amounts due from/to the subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The

carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to

subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

o mRETHEA 7mﬂz¢ﬁzgﬁﬁ
B8 AR A R E - B ik T U A

RBZEEHEHEE ®ER

/)&TEF%

21,500,000/ 7T (ZZZ+ 4 :10,660,000

BT e

& W I FE AN P JBB 2 ) 2 SR IR AR MR AR AT

B % 458 [ 52 48 K o b £

EAFERE
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31 March 2008

ZENF=ZA=1+—H
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. M AR (8)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company FEMBARIMNFERAT:

are as follows:

Nominal value
Class of of issued Percentage of
Place of equity ordinary/ equity interest
incorporation/ interest registered attributable to Principal
Name registration held share capital the Company activities
AL/ BRAEE/ ARE G RE
£ EMREEHE FrRERR EmER Bak TEEHR
2008 2007
“EENE —FTtE
Amica Properties Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100 100 Property investment
Limited
BEMEXRERAT Bk LR 10,000/ 7T MmER;
Carrianna (BVI Ltd)* British Virgin Ordinary shares Us$1 100 100 Investment holding
Islands
EBREES LRk 3 RERR
Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$8,000,000 73 73 Restaurant
Restaurant Limited * operations
EEHCHM) BRERAR Bk EB& 8,000,000% 7 REREZ
Carrianna Chinese Food Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$900,000 89 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
EEFrAR® (BE) Bk LR 900,000/ 7T RAER
BRAF
Carrianna Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$25,000,000 100 100 Property investment
and development
EEBEEERAA B LRk 25,000,000% 70 NERERER
Carrianna (Shenzhen) Mainland China Registered capital ~ HK$80,000,000 100 100 Investment holding and
Investment Co., Ltd. @ property development
EEH ORI &3 hEIAKE AMER 80,000,0007% 7. REBRROEER
BRAR
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31 March 2008
ZZENF=HAH=+—H

20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows: (continued)

20. 5B A RIER (B)

TEMBARMNFEBNOT: (&)

Nominal value
Class of of issued Percentage of
Place of equity ordinary/ equity interest
incorporation/ interest registered attributable to Principal
Name registration held share capital the Company activities
EfAEL/ BROEE/ ARE R RE
R ARG fiis RER R EMEX Aot IEXH
2008 2007
“ZEIN\E ZZ%+tF
China East International Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$ 1,000,000 70 - Investment holding
Material City Limited
ERERNHNERRA Bk EB& 1,000,000% 7. REER
Crown Tech Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited
ERREARAR B ERR 1B REER
Earn Fame Group Limited* British Virgin Ordinary shares US$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands
RAEEBAERAA RBRAES LAk 1% REER
Elite Brave Development British Virgin Ordinary shares US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Islands
BREZRERLA RERAEE gl (EI RERR
Goldfield Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Property investment
BEEEXERLA Bk gl 2B NERE
Huge Moral International British Virgin Ordinary shares US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Islands
BERARERAA RERAHSE EBR 1% REZR

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #£ Bk & =
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows: (continued)

20. 5B A RIER (B)

TEMBARMNFEBNOT: (&)

Nominal value
Class of of issued Percentage of
Place of equity ordinary/ equity interest
incorporation/ interest registered attributable to Principal
Name registration held share capital the Company activities
HRERL/ BRALE/ RRAEERE
£H SR EE L FrsRESR EMER BAlt TEEH
2008 2007
“IZEIN\E ZZT+tF
International Fashions Canada Ordinary shares €$9,000 89 89  Distribution and
Group Inc. # sale of garments
Non-voting €$500 - -
preference shares
JIEYN EBR 9,000107¢ AERHEKK
ERZRELR 50007
Kunming Carrianna Chaozhou ~ Mainland China Registered capital ~ HK$12,000,000 62 62 Restaurant
Restaurant Ltd. @ operations
RREEFANECERAR @ PEAE FER 12,000,000% 7T REKE
Shenzhen Carrianna Mainland China Registered capital HK$6,000,000 922 92 Restaurant
(Chiu Chow) Restaurant operations
Co., Ltd. @
AIEEBANELERAR @ hEARE HMER 6,000,000/ 10 RELE
Shenzhen Carrianna Mainland China Registered capital ~ RMB20,000,000 68 68  Restaurant
Friendship Square operations
Restaurant Co., Ltd. @
ANEEHR A hEIAKE HMEXR A& %20,000,0007C REREZ
EAABEERRAR @
Tak Sing Alliance Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$200 100 100 Manufacture and
Limited distribution of
Non-voting HK$1,000,000 - - garments and
deferred shares property development
o LRk 200% 7T HE DRRKRNE
ERFEBTRD  1,000,000% T RE
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20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows: (continued)

Name

L

Place of
incorporation/
registration
EfAEL/
BRI ES S

Class of
equity
interest
held

fr s R ER

20. 5B A RIER (B)

TEMBARMNFEBNOT: (&)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/

registered
share capital
BRATEE/
ZMEX

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to
the Company
ARE R RE
BAlt
2008 2007
“ZI\F ZZT4FE

Principal
activities

IREHR

Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion
Company Limited "
BNTEAREERAR O

REEEHERARARY

REEEHEEERARAR Y

AIEERERERERAAY

aHEERNEEERERAR 2

Mainland China

PEAR

Mainland China

PEAE

Mainland China
AR

Mainland China
hEKE

Mainland China
hEKE

Mainland China

PEAE

Mainland China
REIR R

Mainland China
REIRRE

Mainland China
REIRRE

Registered capital
HfER
Registered capital
AMER

Registered capital
AMER

Registered capital
HfER

Registered capital
HfER

Registered capital

AfER

Registered capital
HMER

Registered capital
HMER

Registered capital

AfER

HK$51,000,000

51,000,000 7T

RMB14,700,000

AR 14,700,000

RMB1,500,000

AR %1,500,0007T

RMB1,000,000

A K #1,000,0007C

RMB3,000,000

A K #3,000,0007

RMB20,000,000

AE20,000,0007C

RMB5,000,000

AR %5,000,0007T

RMB&,000,000

AR %8,000,0007T

RMB80,000,000

AE80,000,0007C

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED #£ Bk & =

100 100
100 ** 100
74 74
70 70
53 =
75 75
100 =
55 55
90 =

Manufacture of
garments

RKEE

Hotel and restaurant
operations

BERRRAE

Restaurant operation
REREZ

Restaurant operations
RELE

Restaurant operations
RELE

Restaurant operations

REEE

Restaurant operations
REKE

Inactive
HERE

Hotel operations
EELE
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows: (continued)

Name

2R

Place of
incorporation/
registration
HRAL/
SR EE L

Nominal value

Class of of issued
equity ordinary/
interest registered
held share capital
BRAEE/

FrsRESR EMEX

20. B A RIER (B

TEMBRAMNFERET: (&)

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to Principal
the Company activities
AREELRE
Aot TEXH
2008 2007

“RBNF —TTLE

Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise
Co., Ltd. @
EER(HE) EEERAR

ERARE U NIRRT
(#2%) BRAT ©

Mainland China

PEAR

Mainland China

Registered capital ~ RMB100,000,000

FMER A K #100,000,0007C

Registered capital  US$29,980,000

PEARE AMEAR 29,980,000% 7T
* Direct subsidiaries of the Company *
**  55% of equity interest is directly attributable to the **
Company
# Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other #
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network
) Wholly-owned foreign enterprises o
@ Sino foreign equity joint venture companies @

Except for Carrianna Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong but operates in Mainland
China, all of the above subsidiaries operate in their places

of incorporation/registration.
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20.

21.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

During the year, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“Hunan
Carrianna”) from Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (“KC Ma") and
Mr. Ma Kai Yum (“KY Ma"), the substantial shareholders
and executive directors of the Company, and an
additional 20% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna from
(the
“Vendor”). Further details of this acquisition are included

Yiyang Yin Ye Fa Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd.
in note 36 to the financial statements.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion

RER AEERSFNELRERBFNTREL
(ARREZEBRREATES) KBEEEH
G BEXBRAR (HEEEH)
55%E RAZBTREXZTEARA
B ([E77]) WBEIN20% B E - ZXFHF
BB PR B 7S R M 36/

REZFENER ALMIINMBARSE
EFEAKENFEANRESERANE
BEEFENTEZHNOMNBRAR: MER

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other RrREPI E AP B AR ER B BE KB
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result AVIE=4
in particulars of excessive length.
INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 21, HEZEFERER
ENTITY
Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELEF
TERT FHTT
Share of net assets 15 EEFE 1,790 1,790
Amount due to the
jointly-controlled entity JE 1< 3% [A] 22 1| B 88 3K (612) (612)
Provision for impairment B B (1,178) (1,178)
The balance with the jointly-controlled entity is unsecured, HRAZEFEBNORIRAEERKTFHAE
interest-free and is not repayable within one year from BRBERGEEHRS —FREER

the balance sheet date.

&)

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # BX £

141



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 1% 3 & B A
31 March 2008
ZENF=ZA=+—8H

142

21. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITY (continued)

Particulars of the Group's jointly-controlled entity are as

21. ARZEFERER (5)

AEBEAREFERZFBNT:

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
Business registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name structure and operation interest power sharing activity
XS MY rEEEGEBESL
=x: REERX of i B AR i B B & RERE FMNEIE FEX®
Chengdu Carrianna Corporate PRC/Mainland 51 50 51 Dormant
Chaozhou Restaurant China
Co., Ltd.
B D £ 2= 75 A ] B, B K B EmEx

ANBEZERAE

The investment in the jointly-controlled entity is indirectly

held by the Company.
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EENF=ZHA=+—H
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. (hEEE AT ER

Group

KEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2BNF "TTt%
FiET FH& T
Share of net assets BLHEEFE 728,378 441,560
Due from associates & B 2 J) BR 3R 49,584 45,345
Due to associates FE B2 N AR (3.338) (2,846)
774,624 484,059
Provision for impairment o RI=RE (10,628) (10,628)
763,996 473,431

The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
carrying amounts of these amounts due from/to
associates approximate to their fair values.

The Group’s share of aggregate profits accumulated by
the associates for the year amounted to HK$169,630,000
(2007: HK$338,014,000).

The Group's share of the net post-acquisition surplus of
the associates as at 31 March 2008 amounted to
HK$724,764,000 (2007: HK$437,946,000).

BB N R R U FE T SRR R AR R
PEFAE R EEEEREBR - EEE R EH
U RN FIRZ REERE A FERLY-

FRAEE GBS QMR EF
/169,630,000 ¢t (—Z T ZT + F:
338,014,000 7T ) °

REBR-_ZENFZA=+—HEGH
ef/&EJE@H&Eﬁf&éﬁﬁ%ﬁ724,764,ooo%m
(ZZE4:437,946,000/ 1) °

&)
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates, which are all
unlisted companies, are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage of
equity interest

issued  Business registration and attributable Principal
Name shares held  structure operations to the Group activities
2008 2007
EHRE EMERL/ AEEEERE
£ BEERTRE  FA AR EELE Rl IEXH
1% 2
China South City Holdings Ordinary shares  Corporate Hong Kong/ 20 20 Investment
Limited (“CSCHL") HK$40,000 Mainland China holding
EBHERARAF LERk A Bk /HEAR REBR
([E@R)) 40,000 7T
South China International Ordinary shares  Corporate Hong Kong/ 50 50  Property
Purchasing Exchange HK$5,000 Mainland China investment and
Centre Limited* development
EHARRBRATLERAR! LEk QA B/ HEAR MERERER
5,000% T

# not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The associates are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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2E\F=A=+—H
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. (hEEE DTSR (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TH AMEEARNEERE AR EREKRA N
information of the Group’s associates extracted from their KASEEEZERABRNEEH VM BER:
management accounts, after making appropriate
adjustments by the Group:
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EEF
TET FET
Assets BE 7,353,044 4,058,119
Liabilities =R (3,712,177) (1,854,992)
Revenue g 562,880 144,871
Profit pl 848,150 1,654,308
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. OJHEERE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —TTLF
FE T T T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JELEMRAKRE K AE 19,761 19,708

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.

Unlisted equity investments under available-for-sale
investments are stated at cost because their fair values
could not be reliably measured as at the balance sheet
date.

R EREEERAHHESREEZ
BAES HEBEIHAXZIEES X

A R A 2 SRR R A AR
EHERRAERERARERTHED
FE

&)
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

24, REBBELAFEZEREE

Group

rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZETtF
FTET T

Unlisted investment funds, at fair value: JELEMIREES LA FE:

Hong Kong D 12,978 12,092

The fair values of the unlisted investment funds are based
on quoted market price.

The above investments at 31 March 2008 were classified
as held for trading.

At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of the above
investments of the Group pledged as security for the
Group's bank loans amounting to HK$12,978,000 (2007:
HK$12,092,000), as further detailed in note 42 to the
financial statements.

FETRERES 2 AFEETSREFE-

NERZZEENF=ZA=+—RHZRED
DERFIEFEERE-

RZEEN\F=ZA=+—RH Ll AEEE
BRTERBERORECEEEAR
12,978,000 7T (ZEZE 4 :12,092,000
BIT) B ER B RERN 42 o

25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. BERTUE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENFE ZETtF
FEx FHET
Properties under development TEHEA AT EX[E] 2
expected to be recovered: BRPYE:
Within one year —FR 26,901 =
After more than one year ZR—F 509,566 =
536,467 =
Amount comprises: HEHAaE:
Construction costs and BERAR
capitalised expenditures BEXR{tEH 529,906 -
Finance costs capitalised (note 7) BRI A (B 5E7) 6,561 =
536,467 -
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25.

26.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

The Group's properties under development were located
in Mainland China.

Included in the Group's properties under development as
at 31 March 2008 were land costs with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$153,217,000 held
under medium term leases.

At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of the Group's
properties under development amounting to
HK$439,331,000 was pledged as security for the Group’s
bank loans, as further detailed in note 42 to the financial
statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s major properties under
development are included on page 199.

25. BEADPYE (&)

AEBEZHERTMRLR DB AL

AEBR _ZEENF=ZA=+—"HEER
YERHERM 2 RMEEA153,217,000/%8
TTAFREAE A H -

RZBZENF=ZA=1+—RH A&£EREE
/439,331,000 T2 B RFPMED AER
FAEBEZRITEZER-F BRI HIR
KMIEE42-

s

fAREE 2 ERTYEFBINF 199

o

\
/

INVENTORIES 26. 8

Group

KEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2EENF —ET+F
FET FH& T
Raw materials R 1,499 11,865
Work in progress & m - 5,564
Finished goods BURK an 3,654 11,672
Food and beverages B K ar 46,259 24,761
51,412 53,862

At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of inventories
of the Group pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans amounting to HK$46,000 (2007: HK$1,997,000),
as further detailed in note 42 to the financial statements.

R-EBEENEFE=ZA=+—0 X£EE
46,0008 70 (ZZEE £ 4:1,997,000% 7T)
W ERETRITAERER FBDHER
B 75 3R 45 B sk 420
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$83,518,000
(2007: HK$71,259,000) representing the trade debtors

of the Group.

27. EWRF - BERAMFFRKE

4582 B 4583,518,0008 T (ZEE 4
71,259,000/ ) AAEE 2 EWE R

o
oA °©

Group

rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —ETLHF
TERT FET
Trade debtors B 5 R 96,636 83,474
Impairment B (13,118) (12,215)
83,518 71,259

The aged analysis of such debtors is as follows: S E R R 2 R D AT AT

Group

rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEN\FE —EELF
FTEx FHT
Current — 30 days ElH —30H 56,410 36,394
31 - 60 days 31—60H 5,005 5,816
61 — 90 days 61—90H 2,320 1,558
Over 90 days B0 H 19,783 27,491
83,518 71,259

Credit terms

Trade debtors and bills receivable arose from garment
business generally have credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
Restaurant business is normally traded on a cash basis.
For property sales, credit terms vary in accordance with
the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. All trade
debtors are recognised and carried at their original
invoiced amounts less impairment of debtors which is
recorded when the collection of the full amount is no
longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #R
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’'s trade debtors relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
debtors are as follows:

27. BWERF -RERAMNRE (&)

ERILANEE SERKESRFS R
REELZRBRBEARF RAEANEER
EF BEHRUERGREFTH S

MTESRUERZRERE 2 ESHMT:

Group

rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ETLF
FET FHET
At 1 April REA—H 12,215 7,512
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)  SR{EEEE IR (M 5E6) 1,384 4,910
Amount written off as uncollectible Bt Ux [ 3 AR (515) (370)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) 1B & 18 B B (B E6) (1,133) (281)
Exchange realignment ER AR 1,167 444
13,118 12,215

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade
debtors of HK$13,118,000 (2007: HK$12,215,000) with
a carrying amount of HK$13,412,000 (2007:
HK$12,420,000). Such provision was determined after
taking into account the ageing of individual accounts
receivable balances, the creditworthiness of the debtor,
its repayment history and historical write-off experience.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

LG FESRBERER ZBRERGRERE
BRAEREE SERERED 2 &
#% 13,118,000 Tt (Z T T £ F :
12,215,000 7) ZZR KRR 2 REEBEA
13,412,000 7T (ZEE % :12,420,000
BT RBECENREBEREMBNER
FEURBR Z AR TR AR SR 2 (5 A B AL 8%
RBAMERER NEEEZRE LRFE
ERERKEEE M-
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

27. BWERF -RERAMNRE (&)

ABEEREZBYRFREIITAT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ZETEF
TH T FHE T
Neither past due nor impaired K@ HA sk R OB (B 58,898 38,519
Less than 1 month past due —1{& A W% 8 3,993 5,088
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z =18 A 1,393 2,518
Over 3 months past due wHEBA=EA 18,940 24,929
83,224 71,054

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 28. B - BEeSEBEBERCHEHBERH

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (AN
Group Company
N3 | b NN
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M —ZZNF ZZTTtE -ZTZI\F ZTTLF
TER FTHEL FEx FEL
Cash and bank balances BeRBIER 133,389 80,948 63 25
Time deposits EHER 20,617 68,779 41 40
154,006 149,727 104 65
Less: Pledged time deposits W RTERZ
for bank loans BERATHESR 4 (20,305) (20,624) (41) (40)
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEBEER 133,701 129,103 63 25

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
(including time deposits) of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$101,983,000 (2007:
HK$59,483,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

REER AEE e RREEFH (B2
REBHTER) EARKE(TARK]) BE
W47 2 #5 5%0101,983,0008 L (=&
T+ :59,483,0000) - ARBEKREER
AEBRABHMEE BREPBE A 2 INE
B Hl 50 R4 E - BIE RAEEZGOIRE
AR AEEEBEFTRITINES 2 RIT
HBAREAREME -

RITRS MMM B TR E BRTEFHA
RZFBHHERME - FEHE R TR BRA
—NF-BE=ZEAAFLE TEBRFAE
BRRSH R LR TRNEHTERTF
FIREUA B SRIT T MBI R I R =
BROBIPLAENCEZIRIT-RER
ReSERERACEMER 2 RAERE
NFEEL-
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29. TRADE CREDITORS 29. ENEZERX

The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows: ERNEBESERZERSTET:

Group
&
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EETLHF
FET FET
Current — 30 days Bl H —30H 21,320 17,899
31 - 60 days 31—60H 27,213 9,798
61 — 90 days 61—90H 14,881 5,021
Over 90 days HBiE90H 32,481 5,475
95,895 38,193
30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. [MEZHRITRHEMER
BORROWINGS
Group Company
K5H N
Effective
interest rate Maturity 2008 2007 2008 2007
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERENE  HHA BTN\ —ETLE —EENE e
(%) TER TAT TERL THL
Current B &
Bank overdrafts - unsecured ~ $R{7E X - EHMA 40-72  ondemand 1,238 26 = =
ZBA
Bank overdrafts - secured ROEZ-BHA 40-75  ondemand 5,433 198 = =
RRA
Bank loans - unsecured ROER-BER 34-68 2009 40,000 38,000 - 4,500
ZEThE
Bank loans - secured ROER-FEA 31-76 2009 210,700 189,970 3,324 6,648
“TTNE
Trust receipt loans - unsecured ~ fEFEMEE R — 2 H 59-6.6  June 2007 - 2,439 = =
“TT+ERA
Trust receipt loans - secured ~ EHENEEH-FEA 5.9-7.8  June 2007 - 3,399 - =
—2T+ERA
Other loans - secured BN -5HA 6.2 2008 1,786 1,786 = S
“TE)\E
259,157 235,818 3,324 11,148
Non-current FFE
Bank loans - secured RITEZ-HER 35-76 2009 - 2017 381,389 370,810 8,629 11,676
“ETNEZ
“E—+t%
Other loans - secured HEER-FER 6.2 2012 6,250 8,036 - =
—E-CF
387,639 378,846 8,629 11,676
646,796 614,664 11,953 22,824
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30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

30. MR 2RITREMER (8)

Group Company
P AAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EENE ZEZTLF ZBENF ZTTLF
THET FET TER TEL
Analysed into: MR
Bank overdrafts repayable: ROBZEBRE:
within one year or —FRYEEREEER
on demand 6,671 224 - -
Bank loans repayable: ROENERE:
within one year or —F R
on demand DB EE 250,700 227,970 3,324 11,148
in the second year FF 181,124 102,213 3,324 3,324
in the third to fifth years, F=-FEFRF(H
inclusive EMEREEAR) 128,865 176,716 5,305 8,352
beyond five years HENE 71,400 91,881 - =
632,089 598,780 11,953 22,824
Other borrowings repayable: ~ BRIAT BB AEE
ZEMER:
within one year or R—FNK
on demand ZEREEE 1,786 1,786 - -
in the second year FF 1,786 1,786 = =
in the third to fifth years, F-FEFRF(H
inclusive EMEBREEN) 4,464 5,357 - =
beyond five years RENE - 893 - -
8,036 9,822 - =
Trust receipt loans repayable:  EEWIEE REXH:
within one year or —FRYEEREEER
on demand - 5,838 - =
646,796 614,664 11,953 22,824
All interest-bearing bank and other borrowings bear B SRITREMERHLZESE-

interest at floating interest rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

At the balance sheet date, a director of the Company
has guaranteed certain of the Group’s banking facilities
up to HK$271,159,000 (2007: HK$272,020,000).

AEERARBDER 2 REEROE QT
Ee

ARE—REERAEEBHEITERE
EIRHERSE £271,159,0008 T (Z 2
+ 4 :272,020,0005 1) °

&)
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31.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 31.

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for its
property investment and development business. The
leases are classified as finance leases and have remaining

lease terms ranging from 1 to 5 years.

At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values

ENBEMEY

AEERMERERBEREGHANE
WMIERERE LEFISBMEMQ HRTH
BN F1E5F-

R-ZEZNF=ZA=+—H BREREED
BEARINZZRLBEORAREARE

were as follows: (0N
Group
KEE
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum  minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments  payments
5 S | =M
B4 #H =AM #FRIE 458
FES ] 4 7R I8 HE A
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETEF ZZT)\F ZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHET TET F&E T
Amounts payable: SRIAEE
Within one year —FA 900 315 790 288
In the second year F_F 663 281 627 255
In the third to fifth years, E=FEERF(H
inclusive EREBREEN) 247 70 234 64
Total minimum finance FE T Rt & M 4
lease payments =K 4258 1,810 666 1,651 607
Future finance charges 1 2Kk Bt 7% & A (159) (59)
Total net finance lease FESRLE A
payables FRERE 1,651 607
Portion classified as current P ERE B ER (G
liabilities (790) (288)
Long term portion KB E 1D 861 319

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease

payables approximate to their fair values.
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during REERERBEERBBCEFHNT:

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEESE
Group AEH
2008
LYY

Depreciation Fair value
allowance adjustments

in excess arising from Undistributed
of related acquisition of Revaluation  profits of a
depreciation  subsidiaries of properties  subsidiary Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WEEW B
BBEENE AQREZZ WEAR

N ERE LVEAR WEERE  A2KEHN a5t
TER TER TiER TER TER

At 1 April 2007 RZZZ+5MA-A 8,079 9,180 85,707 1,003 103,969

Deferred tax charged/(credited) rEERHERRNR/

to the income statement (BitA) 2

during the year (note 10) BB (75 10) 2,060 (12,331) 26,003 (1,003) 14,729
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) & —RIF B2 A (3 36) = 277,992 - = 277,992
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—RHEAR (HE37) (779) - - - (779)
Exchange realignment BEHHE 39 - 870 - 909
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZBENE=A=+—H

at 31 March 2008 ZERHRARKEE 9,399 274,841 112,580 - 396,820
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32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. IEEBIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets ELEMEEE
Group rEH
2008
Losses available for
offset against
future taxable profit
HK$'000
—EENF
A] FA A BE oK 2R PE SR Y
ERIEE 2 BB
FHE T
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZE+LHFWMA—H 8,524
Deferred tax credited to the KEFFARTRZ
income statement EEFRIE (MEE10)
during the year (note 10) 4,652
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE B AR (MiE37) (3.342)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 165
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEZENF=A=+—H2
at 31 March 2008 RERIEEELMA 9,999
For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain REEBBERFHHECHBEERARE
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The EEEE - T Y BRI BERBEENEHRE
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of B2z o
the Group for financial reporting purposes:
HK$’000
FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised F%’Féﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁwz
in the consolidated balance sheet R IEEEFE 9,999
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised NMrEEEBBREER
in the consolidated balance sheet R IR A EFE (396,820)
(386,821)
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32.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. IEERHIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEEE
Group KE
2007
S
Depreciation Fair value
allowance  adjustments
in excess  arising from Undistributed
of related acquisition of  Revaluation ~profits of a
depreciation  subsidiaries  of properties subsidiary Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2B RKENE
BBMEN QRREEZ MEBAE
nERE LTEEE NEEML  RHWET @t
TAT TET THT TEL TEL
At 1 April 2006 RZZEZ FMNA-A 1,383 9,180 41,020 1,936 53,519
Deferred tax charged/(credited) AEERERPNR/
to the income statement (BitA) 2
during the year (note 10) BB (i :E10) 6,725 - 44,447 (933) 50,239
Exchange realignment %A% (29) = 240 = M
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised  R=EE+F=A=+—H
in the consolidated balance sheet EEBRACHRA
at 31 March 2007 ZERER AR 2E 8,079 9,180 85,707 1,003 103,969
TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED i % &
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The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$109,801,000 (2007: HK$97,772,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses relating to certain overseas
subsidiaries of HK$3,936,000 (2007: HK$2,595,000) that
are available for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose for a
maximum of 5 years. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
which the tax losses can be utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) EERIE (8)
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE
Group rEH
2007
Losses available for
offset against
future taxable profit
HK$’'000
—EELF
A A DA B R SR FE AR
s B 3 8 2 B 18
T T
At 1 April 2006 RZZEZEZREMA—A 191
Deferred tax credited to the AKFEEFANTZRZ
income statement EERIE (FisE10)
during the year (note 10) 8,271
Exchange realignment PE H 62
Gross deferred tax assets recognised RZZEZLF=A=+—8H
in the consolidated balance sheet EEBEXREER
at 31 March 2007 ZBEERIAEERE 8,524

REBBRBEBE ZBIIEEE 109,801,000
BT (ZZET4:97,772,000%7T) » itk
EEENERBAANEEEA QR ZRKE
R g T HE BH o AN SR B N A B T SN B
ARBBEZHIARE3,936,0008 T (ZF
T+ 4:2,595,000/87C) Mt FEE R &
ZRAFHNRNEEERRZREERT
A AR RAERRTAIEEERHZ
JE R B R AV S I ST IHE 8 - R 5E
HEEERRAEREHBEEE-

A 2% B 1)L B R A R 2 3 4 2 2 43 Bt
%Re
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA
Company
AT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ETLF
TH T FHE T
Authorised: EERA
2,000,000,000 BREECI10B T LB
(2007: 2,000,000,000) %15 2,000,000,0000%
ordinary shares of —ETEF:
HK$0.10 each 2,000,000,0008%) 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REERAE:
1,144,122,328 BREBEC10B T LB
(2007: 746,637,219) R& 19 1,144,122,3280%
ordinary shares of —ETEF:
HK$0.10 each 746,637,2194%) 114,412 74,664

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 9,750,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription prices of
HK$0.30 per share to HK$1.30 per share (note 34),
resulting in the issue of 9,750,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$7,375,000 and HK$2,693,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the
share premium account.

ERRAZE T

(@) 9,750,0000% & A% # Fr BT 58 % 4 7 1%
FR030BILEFRIIOBITLIAEZ
BHRITE (M E34) At 817
9,750,000/ B AR E E0.108 T 2 X
MATNBRAIZ2BRESKAB
7,375,000 7T % 2,693,000/ JTL E. B
EREREBRZERNDEER-
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

On 26 June 2007, the Company and KC Ma entered
into a placing, underwriting and subscription
agreement with a placing agent. Pursuant to the
agreement, KC Ma has agreed to place 133,000,000
shares of the Company to independent professional,
institutional and other investors at a price of
HK$3.05 per share. On 9 July 2007, KC Ma
subscribed for 133,000,000 new shares at the same
price pursuant to the agreement.

On 8 February 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement with KC Ma and KY Ma, the substantial
shareholders and executive directors of the
Company, to acquire a 55% equity interest in
Hunan Carrianna for a consideration of
RMB417,450,000 of which RMB60,000,000 was
satisfied by cash and RMB357,450,000 by the issue
of 224,258,432 ordinary shares of the Company to
KC Ma and KY Ma. On 25 May 2007, 224,258,432
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued by
the Company at HK$1.60 per share (note 36).

On 25 May 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Vendor to acquire an additional
20% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna at a
consideration of RMB167,000,000 of which
RMB83,500,000 was satisfied by cash and
RMB83,500,000 by the issue of 30,476,677 ordinary
shares of the Company to the Vendor. On 4 October
2007, 30,476,677 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued by the Company at HK$2.80 per share
(note 36).
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33. BA& (&)

(b)

R_EBEZLFENA-Z+ 8 K27
ESENEAERAREHR N AFTLA
E BHEERBHZ - BEZBE S
NEXERBZRSR305E T ZER
it £ 133,000,000 A" 2 A B 1D T 1B
VEEAT BEREMEESE-RZ
ZE+F+ANE BEZBE BN
= % & DAME RI{E 4% 58 B8 133,000,000
AR FT AR 17 o

R-ZEELE-AN\B - AEEEK
RAIZEEZERRRATEETHENEL
ERENRAEEIT L HE UARK
417,450,000t 2 KB E A EE
M 2 55%fKk # - B P AR K
60,000,000T AR S H T R AR
357,450,000 M 2 17 &N A &
22425842 EBBBMH FENE
EERBNREESIN-RZTZT+
FRA-T+HA USKR1.60% T3
1T R A B 224,258,432/ & K m &
010 o2 LBARAR D (FF7E36) ©

R-_ETZ+FRA-_+HE KEE
HEFITLBE  KAARE
167,000,000t R EBHEH EAME
EEP0%BROER EFARER
8 AR #83,500,0007T & 1T AR 7
30,476,677 E BN E AR
83,500,000t 2 RB- R _TELF
+AMBE UAZK2.808 LEITAR
A]30,476,677R L@ RGN BARE
B0.10% 7T (M 5E36) °
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 33. B4 (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with BREMARRREETRAZES RFERNZ
reference to the above movements in the Company’s RSBEEHWMT:
issued ordinary share capital is as follows:
Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2R 2R i 12 %
RHHE [N BE By
(i FTAET FHET FET
At 1 April 2006 RZETREF
mA—H 743,587,219 74,359 465,952 540,311
Share options exercised BT ERE 34 3,050,000 305 2,042 2,347
At 31 March 2007 and RZZT+4F
1 April 2007 “A=+—-Hk
—ET+F
mMA—A 746,637,219 74,664 467,994 542,658
Share options exercised 1T R 34 9,750,000 975 9,093 10,068
Placement of new shares BIRMH 133,000,000 13,300 379,388 392,688
Issue of consideration shares  E{TRE R 254,735,109 25,473 418,540 444,013
At 31 March 2008 RZTE/\F
—B=+—H 1,144,122,328 114,412 1,275,015 1,389,427
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the RNATZBRERTE 2B EHR AT
share options issued under the scheme are included in WEMTE34 o

note 34 to the financial statements.
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, and other
employees of the Group. The Scheme became effective
on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-
month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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34. lBIRAESHE

ARRHRAE—BBBRES ([ZHE])
RUAEEXRBHELEMZAERS RS
REUESB LR S ZAER2EER
RARBES BRBYFNTEERAE
BEMBT -ZA3RXR _TTRF+ATH
R R IEE R RIER] AT R E
AT FRERER-

RIBZET S BRI ER 2 W ARTT B
BERINFEEARA KD HITRMDA
BM210% - RZFEFETZBREERS
EERBERBRERZHTRO ERAEM12
BEAME A SEBEARR TR EITRN
REZ1%  (EE— PR 2 BRERR
SRR AFERRERRAE LA

RYESERELTELESARAT B
FERNTESIE (HEBRAL) BEBA
RRAR TR EEHITRHD0.1% AR 1218
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer date, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’'s daily
guotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

34.

BRES (8

BREXKEE ARE28RAKXTRE &
MIBRER R RER BT - KT BRE
MITEHHESETE

BREZTEENHAEREE BARAT
BREZESE (WHREZZAH (ZA L
AREFXRB)RBIMBERERMIIZ
Wi E: (iR EEREZE M AEER
BB P B RERMAI 2 FORTE:
R (i) 7 E 18

BREY EIR T RHA ARNERRE RN

RRE LIRE-
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. EIRRESTE (8)
The following share options were outstanding under the EARFEN ZT 8 T RARITE 2 BRER
Scheme during the year: Dk
2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price  of options exercise price of options
HK$ per share HK$ per share
—EENF —ETLF
¥ N F19
TEE BRERE THE BREHA
BRET BRET
At 1 April RMEA—H 0.61 38,350,000 0.30 29,200,000
Granted during the year RERE L 2.47 19,500,000 1.30 12,200,000
Exercised during the year RERITRE 0.76  (9,750,000) 0.45  (3,050,000)
Forfeited during the year RERKK 2.15 (500,000) = =
At 31 March R=ZRA=+—H 1.32

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.28
(2007: HK$0.90).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

47,600,000 0.61

38,350,000

RERITHE 2 ERENITE B H 2 i
HREBEE228BL(ZEZTLH:0908

7T)

REH B RARITE 2 BIREZITEERIT

options outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as fE AR AR T
follows:
2008 —EENE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HKS$ per share
BREXE TEEY THEHE
BRET
21,300,000 0.30 27-5-2005 to 26-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
18,300,000 2.49 23-4-2007 to 22-4-2012
700,000 2.15 24-8-2007 to 23-8-2012
47,600,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34.

2007

Number of options

Exercise price*
HK$ per share

AR ESHE (&)
=

Exercise period

B AR 2B TEE> T HME
BRAET
26,600,000 0.30 27-5-2005 to 26-10-2015
11,750,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
38,350,000
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to * BARETTEEARBERFARBEITHA

adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$15,338,000 (HK$0.78 each) (2007:
HK$5,785,000, HK$0.47 each) of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$15,217,000
(2007: HK$5,785,000) during the year ended 31 March
2008.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used.

RARAEZ MR UBEEHFE-

REFREEEDEBEREZAFTEAR
15,338,000/ 7T (B%0.78% t) (ZEE
+ 4 :5,785,0008 7T (BR0.4747T) ) -
HhAEERBE_ZETSN\F=A=+—
HiEEE R BR#ER X 215,217,000
BT (ZZEZTH4:5,785,00087T) °

REAMREABRAINS ZERE 2 AT
B R B SR - BAEA R E B R RE
Bz G R Gt E - TREI HZER
ZHER-

2008 2007

—EENEF —ETLF

Dividend yield (%) 1R 2 K (%) 1.30 2.93
Expected volatility (%) T8 590 (%) 50.01 60.60
Historical volatility (%) JE 2R B (%) 50.01 60.60
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 2 b B 2= (%) 4.17 3.83
Expected life of option (year) BRETEREH (F) 5 10
Weighted average share price (HK$) mEFHKRE (Bx) 2.29 0.57

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past years and is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.

BREZEFFHDIREBEZELHE
AEORTEEAY N —EBHE-TRBRKE
REREESERB BARFBE 2 IE R 2R X
F-TERERER
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34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into measurement of fair value.

The 9,750,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 9,750,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$975,000 and
share premium of HK$6,400,000 (before issue expenses),
as further detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 47,600,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 47,600,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of
HK$4,760,000 and share premium of HK$58,192,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 47,600,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
4.16% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 58 to 59 of the financial
statements.

Certain amount of goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against the consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 18 to the financial statements.
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35.

. BRESE (@)

Rt E QP ERIL S R EERE T
o] EL o 455 1

789,750,000 BE R EE R EFERITE -
38 B A A 78 979,750,0000% T @ AL - 58
HNBR AR A 975,000 T R B 10 % B B
6,400,000/ 7T (MR FHITHZ A FFHED
B B 75 & MY 5E 330

REEE R - RIEETE R AR E 47,600,000
DB W RITE - RBARRIRITRAL
B E2EIERT 2 BRESERARNGE
HNEE1T47,600,0000% I B AL BBIMNIR N A
4,760,000 7T * B 10 )% (B 458,192,000
7T (FBRFEITHZAD) ©

RAER T EREE B RBRIEFTE AQ 7
B 47,600,000% B A& 8 AR 1T - (5 AN A &)
EHEBITRMA4.16% o
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35. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Group (continued)

The reserve funds of the Group represent the non-
distributable statutory reserves of the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China. The
transfers to these reserves are determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in accordance

35. f#fE (&)
(a) &A&KE (&)

AEBZHEREEN T BRI
RATBED IR ZIEFE A K827
ZEERBREFTBEKREZBBEE
BEZSHE-LSHEEIERKZ
BRH H A RN B AR 2K

with the relevant laws and regulations of Mainland PN
China. The reserve funds can be used to offset
against future losses or to increase the capital of
the subsidiaries.
Company (b) &2 F
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption Options Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& £ EA EX
HEER b2 BEfE BRERE REEF @t
i3 TAT TAT TAR TER TER TAT
At 1 April 2006 RZZEAFNA—-H 465,952 59,759 316 3,762 17,357 547,146
Share options exercised BBz BRE 33 2,042 = = (1,049) - 993
Equity-settled share option R ff 2 BRELR
arrangements 34 - - - 5,785 - 5,785
Profit for the year KEEEH - - = = 37,386 37,386
Interim dividend RERE 13 - - - - (7,456) (7,456)
Proposed final dividend BERERE 13 = - - - (22,247) (22,247)
At 31 March 2007 R_ZT+E=A=+-H 467,994 59,759 316 8,498 25,040 561,607
Share options exercised BBz BRE 33 9,093 - = (2,693) = 6,400
Placement of new shares REHR 33 379,388 - - - - 379,388
Issue of consideration shares %17 B {7 33 418,540 - - - - 418,540
Equity-settled share option R I 2 BRER 1
arrangements 34 = = = 15,217 = 15,217
Profit for the year REEEF - - - - 10,312 10,312
Interim dividend Rk S 13 - - - - (11,141) (11,141)
Proposed final dividend BERERE 13 = - - - (22,882) (22,882)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENF=A=1-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 21,022 1329 1,357,441

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a
result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August
1991 and represented the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company and the combined net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation, less the effects of the bonus issue
of shares in previous years.

ARRHEMBBHEA- LA —FNAT
~ ANREEATEL AR ARTRA
0 T (B 521 41 I B A T A A B 2
8 OF BB EA £ R BT AT
RET2HE

)
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35. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders under certain specific circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in note
2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related
options expire or be forfeited.

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(i)

On 8 February 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement with KC Ma and KY Ma, the substantial
shareholders and executive directors of the
Company, to acquire a 55% equity interest in
Carrianna (Hunan) Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Hunan
Carrianna”) for a total consideration of
RMB417,450,000, of which RMB60,000,000 was
satisfied by cash and RMB357,450,000 by the issue
of 224,258,432 ordinary shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) of the Company at HK$1.60 per share
(the “lIssued Price”) to KC Ma and KY Ma. On 31
May 2007, the acquisition was completed. Upon
the completion, Hunan Carrianna, which is
principally engaged in property development,
became a subsidiary of the Company. Further details
of the transaction are contained in the Company’s
circular dated 30 March 2007.
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36. BEAH

R-ZZEZLF-_ANB AEEESNEL
ERENREE (RAREZRERIIT
B2 WEBEES CHE) BXE
BRAR ([HREZER])S5%ME BR(E
A AR 417,450,000T 5 AR K
60,000,000t AER @ X1 - i A R %
357,450,0007T Al i& B & & ik 1.60% 7T
([317B]) 31T AR F224,258,4328
BAR(TRERG]) GENEEERBFNK
EESIF-ZERBER=ZZTLFRA=
T—HBEK -TERE TEREWEREN
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 36. BES G (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and MEEESRKER A HREERE
liabilities of Hunan Carrianna as at the date of BzAFEERERKER 2 HERR
acquisition and the corresponding carrying amounts (ERCRNE
immediately before the acquisition were as follows:
Fair value Previous
recognised carrying
on acquisition amount
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g4
ERBZALE RIFRE &
B 5E F& T T T
Property, plant and equipment ME -BERERHE 15 2,487 2,487
Properties under development BERPME 608,800 210,397
Intangible assets EmWEE 19 533,559 =
Debtors, deposits and ERER Zek
prepayments TE I 5RIE 9,958 9,958
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeEE 42,460 42,460
Sundry creditors, accruals and H b A BR
deposits received EAERK
Bize (66,864) (66,864)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i 8. Z BT E K (96,258) (96,258)
Deferred tax iR T F5 18 32 (277,992) =
Minority interests DER RS (340,267) =
415,883 102,180
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEL Z2EE 18 12,080
427,963
Satisfied by: SENE
Cash R&E 61,116
Issue of shares* BEITH R 364,099
Direct expenses paid in connection Y& — & M B A 7]
with acquisition of a subsidiary EEXEZERER 2,748
427,963
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

HKFRS 3 requires the Consideration Shares to be
measured at fair value. The Directors of the
Company consider that the market price of HK$3.61
per share (the ‘Market Price”) on the date of
completion did not reflect the fair value of the
Consideration Shares. Instead, the Directors
consider that the fair value of the Consideration
Shares is better determined by reference to the fair
value of 55% interest acquired, which amounts to
HK$415,883,000, as supported by an independent
professional valuation on the underlying assets
acquired. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Issue Price of HK$1.60 per share is
the fair value for the Consideration Shares.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(i)

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

36. BES Gt (®)

WE-—FHHBARzReRREEE
HEFROZAM:

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration BeRE (61,116)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEz2Re;REEEIEAR 42,460

Direct expenses paid in connection WE—HNBARcEEER

with acquisition of a subsidiary (2,748)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Wi — RN BR A 2H &K
in respect of the acquisition ReEBEER 2L FRE

of a subsidiary (21,404)

Since acquisition, Hunan Carrianna contributed
HK$16,374,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 March 2008.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year would have been HK$691,459,000 and
HK$284,217,000, respectively.

On 25 May 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Vendor to acquire an
additional 20% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna
at a total consideration of RMB167,000,000
(HK$172,344,000), excluding direct expenses paid
in connection with the acquisition of HK$1,125,000.
The fair value of the additional 20% equity interest
in Hunan Carrianna amounted to HK$152,871,000,
thereby generating a goodwill of HK$20,598,000
on acquisition (note 18). On 31 August 2007, the
acquisition was completed. Further details of the
transaction are contained in the Company’s circular
dated 18 June 2007.

WEE#E PEEEPR _ZETNFE=
A=+—BzHAWEzXRFIED
16,374,000/ 7T 2 & Bt °

MEHRENELE REBHBEEK
Z W & B F 5 Bl A691,459,00008
7T }%.284,217,0005# 7T

(i) R-EZLtFRA-+HHBH £~EH
HE RN WE AR EERE
N20%M - BREAARK
167,000,0007T (172,344,000% 70) -
BRERUWBANZ2EEERA
1,125,000/ 7T o Y BB BE /M 20 % 1= =
(BE)BEBERARERZZAFE
#152,871,0008 T  HILIKIBEE 2
2 520,598,000/8 7T (BisE18) < Uk
BER-_ZT+LFENA=ZT—H=E
RoZRXBHERBEHNAARR-ZT
TLrHEFNA+TNBZBEEHA-
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37.

On 31 October 2007, the Group disposed of 80% equity
interest in Amica Fashion which is engaged in the
manufacture, trading and distribution of garments in
South Africa. The disposal was settled by a cash
consideration of HK$10,568,000.

HE—FHHREQF

R_ZE+E+A=+—B AEELE
Amica Fashsion 80% 2 f% A #2552 A R R
MERERREE BI R HEEK ZD
& AR £ K 1810,568,0005 JT 44 1+

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENF ZETtF
Bt 5 FTHE T T
Net assets disposed of: HEZFEE:

Property, plant and equipment WME -BEREZEB 15 4,378 =
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 35 =
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHERR 22,282 =
Inventories BB 2,613 =
Prepayments and other debtors &1 3k 18 K E b fig Y 5% 16,202 =
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBEE 32 2,563 =
Trade creditors B E SERA (14,311) =
Sundry creditors and accruals HihENERRRETER (22,425) =
Minority interests DER R = (2,267) =
9,070 -

Exchange equalisation reserve B R IR
realised on disposal PE 5, 7 % 1 10,581 =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — K B 2 R & & B 6 (9.083) =
10,568 -
Satisfied by cash & WK 10,568 =

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is

BHRLENBARZRERERBES AL
FEBRZ DT

as follows:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2EN\F _—ETt%E
TF#E T FAT
Cash consideration REEE 10,568 =
Cash and bank balances disposed of HE RS RBITHER (22,282) =

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMBARG 2R E RER
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ¥ & it 1 /F 58 (11,714) =
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38. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit before tax to net
cash inflow from operating activities:

8. FEBRERBERME

BREAEFEEEXBNREER
AFHEZH R

Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—EENF —EELF
TR FEL
(E51)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRE AR (BE)
From continuing operations BREER 332,557 410,728
From a discontinued operation IR EET (40,510) (16,957)
Adjustments for: HER:
Bank interest income RITFIE M A (5,797) (2,863)
Depreciation E 25,875 20,936
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR 15 48 B IR 10 SR EE R 2 15,217 5,785
Finance costs % E R 33,091 33,688
Fair value gains on financial assets BATEFABREZ
at fair value through profit or loss CREELAFERE (886) (1,561)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BIB AR EE 9,083 =
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMERBE 169 -
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE WEREEER
property, plant and equipment 5,128 228
Impairment of debtors & 5 B 0 I EL e W R 1B 2 R ME
and other receivables 14,437 4918
Recognition of prepaid land BRI AEREER
lease payments 32 32
Share of profits and losses of associates FE (5 B = A Al Bl % S 18 (169,630) (338,014)
Changes in fair value of REMEZ N FEE S
investment properties (117,883) (78,213)
Loss on disposal of HEAHEEREBIE
available-for-sale investments - 3,621
100,883 42,328
Decrease in properties held for sale BRIEHEME R D 144,103 18,638
Increase in debtors, deposits BEWER EE Rk
and prepayments T Y FRIE N (22,467) (27,017)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEHRRD,/ (#0) 1,857 (6,811)
Increase in trade creditors FET 8 5 BR 3 A0 3E N 70,525 1,294
Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors, HMENRR B EAR
accruals and deposits received BUIZEREHEM (BL) (11,604) 3,857
Cash generated from operations ReEXBME RS 283,297 32,289
Mainland China tax paid B BB 5K (4,703) (1,674)
Overseas taxes refunded BREEINE R 879 3,475
Dividends paid EREKE (37.616) (10,997)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ERLERFRE (12,977) (8,121)
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEBLRERAFE 228,880 14,972
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. AREE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not REZR AEBRARBRINAMBRE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: ZHABERAT:
Group Company
rEH P NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EEZ)\F ZTTLF —EE)N\F ZTTLHF
F#E T FAT TER FAT
Guarantees given for HEFTEEMEL
mortgage loan facilities RIBER
granted to purchasers i {E B R
of properties 19,808 32,512 4,486 6,040
Guarantees given for B QR ER
banking facilities RITEE
utilised by subsidiaries m{E b A R = = 541,607 577,179
Guarantees given to a LB A R ERTT
bank in connection FEEMELOER
with facilities granted
to an associate 9,490 11,000 9,490 11,000
29,298 43,512 555,583 594,219
40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS . REHETHE
(a) As lessor (a) EALHEBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note
16) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

As lessor (continued)

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

40. KEHEZH (B)

(a) ERHAAN (8

R-ZEZNF=A=+—H r&E
RIFEBFITZN T HAEIE 2D
AREA L HER BRI E Z &K

follows: HEeBEENT:
Group
rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —ETLHF
THET FET
Within one year R—F A 53,382 44,394
In the second to fifth years, REZEFRF
inclusive (BEEEMSE) 130,636 92,802
After five years RERFE 94,122 15,062
278,140 152,258
As lessee (b) EEREABEA

The Group leases certain of its properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years
and rentals are normally fixed in accordance with
the respective tenancy agreements. No
arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

AEERBEEHELHERETY
X YWENELHBZER BB T
—EtF-HEeZHBE-RREAH
ZHEANEE AEFELEMEA
HeEXHNZ T

&)
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(continued)

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40. REFEZH (8)
(b) As lessee (continued) (b) EAEBEA (8)
At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future RZEEZNF=ZA=+—H0 4~5£E
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BRI T 5B B B 2 el s A &
operating leases falling due as follows: HEERRAEZN KRS EEM
T

Group

KEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EEF
TE T T T
Within one year R—FR 20,939 16,099

In the second to fifth years, RE_ZEFRF
inclusive (BEERME) 47,400 44,835
After five years RERFE 35,703 19,054
104,042 79,988
41. EiE

41. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed

in note 40(b) above, the Group had the following

commitments at the balance sheet date:

REEE R BRI E40(b) 2
N REBEAB AT AE:

ST E

Group

rEH
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF ZETLF
FTHE T FHIT

Contracted, but not provided for: BT A M A R B
Property, plant and equipment ER Y

— Construction in progress —ERIRE 48,008 8,926
Prepaid land premiums T+ E IR 288,199 =
Properties under development BRPYE 129,427 =
465,634 8,926

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 4 #R




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 55 ¥R 5 MY =t
31 March 2008
ZEN\F=A=+—8

41.

42.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

In addition, Hunan Carrianna is also responsible to put
in an investment which is estimated to be around
RMB369 million for public utilities portion of its property
development project, including a citizen square, a theme
park and the lake surface project (the “Public
Development”), the contracted but not provided for
amount of which is included above. Nevertheless, the
People’s Government of Yiyang City will compensate
Hunan Carrianna for an amount of not less than RMB369
million within five years from the execution of the
Cooperation and Development Agreement with the
People’s Government of Yiyang City, subject to the
investment actually incurred by Hunan Carrianna in
relation to the Public Development.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at the balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
time deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, properties under development and inventories
with a total carrying value of approximately
HK$1,440,566,000 (2007: HK$935,521,000) were
pledged to secure general banking, trade finance and
other facilities granted to the Group. In addition, rental
income generated in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group were assigned to bankers to
secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

On 11 July 2007, a 20%-owned associate of the Group,
CSCHL has issued US$125,000,000 secured convertible
notes. In this regard, the Group, being a shareholder of
CSCHL, has entered into a share charge agreement by
pledging 2,040,000 shares of CSCHL and granting certain
indemnities. Further details of the transaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11 July
2007.

In the prior year, the carrying amount of the Group’s
properties held for sale pledged as security for the Group’s
bank loans amounted to HK$23,309,000.

41.

42.

A (E)

AN R EEBTATREEREOARE
369N EYEERIAR QAR AR
- BETRES TEQAENKMEEAR
(IrRER]) FAZERINERREEGS
RO EABE -AM - H5ETARBAK
ERFAELREARERFARMAREE
ZHHETPNRARKE3.69E - Z M ERR
FHEEEFARRBERNERREME

EEERA

n &% H

= A E B HEXBRLER
8 #91,440,566,000/8 © (= T L +
£:935,521,00087T) 2 & T -WEKR
BEBREME THRER EBAFETA
BaremEE BERVERFEECDHE
B DURB—RBT BEHREREME
Boltih REBMUTEORENE ZHE
W EEE USRI ZEE-

R_ZEZLFLA+—RH AEEHE
20% e 2 — A& AR il R E
£7125,000,000% T &) A R AT 4R 3 2 4% o
At AEEEARERBEE ZRFETLT
3 312,040,0000% 2E = 9 5= B 2 B 15 I JR
ETREREHZ FBHENAEE=-Z
TELFLA+—B2ZAE-

REF AEEIREEA23,309,0007% 7T
ZHEMEEAAKBERITEEKRR
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

43. EHEALXRS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) KREREHRIBEREEMM AN
in these financial statements, the Group had the SN RNEERBHEAEATETTS
following transactions with related parties during 5
the year:

2008 2007
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —EELHF
M 3 TERT FAT
Sales of goods to related HEE M

companies BAERNT (i) 4,737 18,299
Sales of properties to directors HEMETES (if) 18,501 =

Purchase of goods from related M7 &R A
companies BAEMR (iii) (31,877) 59,586

Notes: B 7 :

() The directors consider that sales of goods to related () EZeRR HEERTE@HER
companies were made according to the published AN G TAREE X EEPHAR
prices and conditions offered to the major customers B RIERIEL-
of the Group.

(i)  The directors consider that sales of properties to (il EZeRR HEMETEEFIR
directors were made according to the published BEMBEEFMHAMAERE RIERE
prices and conditions offered to other customers. JE °

(iii)  The directors consider that the purchase prices were (i) E=eRR BEEIREGTE
determined according to the published prices and AEAREMEPHNESE AFRER
conditions similar to those offered to other RARKRETE
customers of the related companies.

In the opinion of the directors, the above EERA LR AEERA HE

transactions were entered into by the Group in the FEHE] ST o

normal course of business.

(b)  Other transactions with related parties: (b) HBMEBEBEATHETIRS:

During the year, the Group acquired a 55% equity
interest in Hunan Carrianna from KC Ma and KY
Ma, the substantial shareholders and executive
directors of the Company. Further details of the
transaction are included in note 36 to the financial
statements.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties: (continued)

In respect of the acquisition, KC Ma and KY Ma
have given an undertaking to indemnify the Group
against monetary losses up to RMB216 million
arising from the failure of Hunan Carrianna to
acquire any portion of the pre-determined lots of
land and Hunan Carrianna’s cost of acquisition of
any portion of these pieces of land which is higher
than the pre-determined price. Further details about
the transaction were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 30 March 2007.

The above transaction also constitutes connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Details of the amounts due from/to its associates
are included in note 22 to the financial statements.

43. ERAEALTR S (&)

(b)

HBAMEALETZRS: (B)

ERUMBEZEE SNEEERSMR
EEREBAGZRARKE2. 1688 LR
WEAEE LN AR EEHERKRE
3 3 B (2 AAT & ) B i B £ 3t 0 B
AEREEBNBR-FRHERER
A _ETLF=A=tHzZRE"

ERAZZRETRAUNE+THAZTFE
BEREEALIRS-

FEUL,FE B & A B BR R IS BN B
B EHE22

Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) ANEBXZEEAB ZHM:
Group:
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
—Z2ENF —ETEF
FExT FHET
Short term employee benefits REEBRA 22,343 26,959
Post-employment benefits RRAE R 166 166
Share-based payments ARt tEZ 4 /9 B A - 4,742
Total compensation paid to BEZEBTEAB 2B
key management personnel 22,509 31,867

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

AEBEZEEMEFBEN A KRS K

s
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

44. REFREBI2EBMIA

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as H1E:
follows:

2008 —EENE
Financial assets cREE

MR- RBENSRTARGEERNIK

Group
r5H
Financial assets Available-
at fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss  receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
ERBH
BRAREFE EXR AHEEZ
MeEmEE FE I BR X SHEE #at
TEx THER THER THER
Due from associates (note 22)  JEUEEZ A7)
(Ff5E22) - 49,584 - 49,584
Available-for-sale investments A ft &% E - - 19,761 19,761
Equity investments at fair value & 22 FEFIBR &
through profit or loss REZFEEDN
BHERE 12,978 - - 12,978
Financial assets included in BN LGS
debtors, deposits and Be kEMNFTIR
prepayments JEREE - 239,613 - 239,613
Pledged time deposits EREHRTR = 20,305 = 20,305
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER - 133,701 - 133,701
12,978 443,203 19,761 475,942
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. ZBERIZEWMI A (5)

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of TR EENERIARNGEEHNE
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as miE: (&)

follows: (continued)

2008 —EENEF
Financial liabilities cWMEaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
HKS$’'000
LA 85 R A 5t
MWERAE
FHET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity (note 21) FERT H B ZEHIE S (HaE21) 612
Due to associates (note 22) FE R 2 N A (B FE22) 3,338
Trade creditors FERTE 5 BR 95,895
Financial liabilities included in sundry creditors, T AEMEMER EFER X
accruals and deposits received PElhkeresmatE 43,803
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FFERITEEMEE 646,796
Finance lease payables JE <1 /b & 7R 4V 1,651
792,095
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

44, REEBIz2E@MIT A (&)

MRE-—RBENEZRTARGEERNK

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as EE: (&)
follows: (continued)
2007 —TELF
Financial assets cHMEE
Group
AEHE
Financial assets Available-
at fair value for-sale
through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiRER
BAREHE EXk AHEEZ
HEMmEE JE s BR 3K SREE et
FHET FHT THT FHET
Due from associates (note 22) JEURHEZ A A
(Pt 5F22) - 45,345 - 45,345
Available-for-sale investments At H £ % & - = 19,708 19,708
Equity investments at fair value E2AFEFIRR
through profit or loss REZFEEMN
BHERE 12,092 - - 12,092
Financial assets included in PN GE S
debtors, deposits and Be RBNFIEL
prepayments PREE - 246,175 - 246,175
Pledged time deposits B E BER - 20,624 - 20,624
Cash and cash equivalents RekF2EEEE = 129,103 = 129,103
12,092 441,247 19,708 473,047
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44,

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as

follows: (continued)

2007

Financial liabilities

miE: (&)

BEEEREB &M T A (4

NMIREB-—RBENSBRTAR

Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

HK$'000
VABE SH K AR 5B
WERAaE
FHEIT
Due to a jointly-controlled entity (note 21) FERT LR HIE 88 (FtsE21) 612
Due to associates (note 22) JE B N A (B sE22) 2,846
Trade creditors JEE SRR 38,193
Financial liabilities included in sundry creditors, T AHMEMEZR EFERA R
accruals and deposits received e remBE 35,923
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FERRITEHEMEE 614,664
Finance lease payables FESREE A4 607
692,845
Financial assets TEMEE
Company
AT
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENEF —ETLF
FTHE T FHTT
Loans and receivables: B e AR
Due from subsidiaries (note 20) JE U B B A 7 (B =E20) 1,660,494 750,610
Financial assets included in 5T A K th JE WAR 3k %
other receivables and deposits BeZeomEE 733 8,088
Due from associates JE W Bt & 2 A 159 159
Pledged time deposits BT HER 41 40
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEIEE 63 25
1,661,490 758,922
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as
follows: (continued)

44,

BREESN 2RI A (&)

MR- RBENSRTARGEEANIK
miE: (&)

Financial liabilities ol =
Company
7 R F]
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EENE —EELF
FHET T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: NEHEK AT ENEREE:
Due to subsidiaries (note 20) FE 1< BT B~ A) (it 5%E20) 197,042 138,272
Financial liabilities included in FTAE AL E SRR
sundry creditors and accruals EtEBRzeMBE 927 -
Interest-bearing bank and AERRITEEMEE
other borrowings 11,953 22,824
209,922 161,096

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and overdrafts, finance leases, other interest-
bearing loans and cash and bank balances. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivables
and accounts payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rates. The effective interest rates and terms of repayment
of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 30. The Group has not used
any derivative to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

45. BHEREE B TR BX (8)

Interest rate risk (continued) F =R B (&)
TRETEEMUSRZHERTE BN
T A e A B RSB ANEE KA QA
MR CERZERREEZZE) A
EAREEEDZ 2 ZE-

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s and Company's
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

Group Company
r5E RAH
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/ Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit before  (decrease) (decrease) in profit before
basis points tax in equity  basis points tax
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bm/ #m/
B/ (H%) g/ #m/ (H2)
(D) B BREAEA (AP EE (B EE  BBAREA
TET THT TEL
2008 BENfE
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3,242) (2,624) 50 (60)
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (6,484) (5,249) 100 (120)
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3,242 2,624 (50) 60
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 6,484 5,249 (100) 120
2007 ZERTtE
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (3,076) (2,101) 50 (114)
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (6,153) (4,202) 100 (228)
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 3,076 2,101 (50) 114
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 6,153 4,202 (100) 228
Credit risk FEERRE

SEYESEREAETHAR - EFEEE
BERANESREMEEFARE SR
ReFEY e NAREREREE
FrE S RAEERR-

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represented the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BB ERERE B FERBE (5)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk S = B
The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most rEEFZELEETRREAEMAEEEE
of the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions BE BERXGETEUETRARER
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and B-AKEIEBRAEMITET AL HHN
Renminbi. The Group has not used any derivative to B @B o
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
The following table indicates the approximate change in TRETHEGEERHAEEFTEATEN
the Group's profit before tax and equity in response to NS EUE R A IR ] AL B B AN B B A
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates i A R B A B 5 B
to which the Group has significant exposure at the
balance sheet date.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$ in profit
rate before tax
% HK$'000
g ORd) #m, CRd)
BITER R B AR R
Aotk FAT
2008 —EENE
If Renminbi strengthens EARBHBTLAED
against Hong Kong dollar 5 6,081
If Renminbi weakens EAREHETHSS
against Hong Kong dollar 5 (6,081)
If Renminbi strengthens EARBHABTAED
against Hong Kong dollar 10 11,663
If Renminbi weakens EARBHBITLED
against Hong Kong dollar 10 (11,663)
2007 —TELF
If Renminbi strengthens EARBHABTAED
against Hong Kong dollar 5 (175)
If Renminbi weakens EARBHBTLHED
against Hong Kong dollar 5 175
If Renminbi strengthens BEARBALAETAD
against Hong Kong dollar 10 (293)
If Renminbi weakens EARBHABTHE
against Hong Kong dollar 10 293
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BB ERERE B FERBE (5)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REEERR
The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and rEBBRRHBARTRERREEE
cash equivalents and have available funding through bank 2B REBABRITERREMEE RS
and other borrowings to meet its working capital AEBEEER TR

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as TERAERSEREEANSRAR UED
at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted RITBNA R EN BB R

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group &
2008
—BRENF
3 to
Less than  less than 1to 5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total

HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ZEAREE —-HHE

REXE SR=EA T-@AUT ZEEEUT HEUL act

b

FEr TR

TR TR TR TR

Due to a jointly-controlled entity EEE -8 e 612 - - - - 612
Due to associates EREE D RRE 3,338 - - - - 3,338
Trade creditors BB 58N 15,599 29,274 51,022 - - 95,895
Financial liabilities included STAEMERER

in sundry creditors, B ERREKESZ

accruals and deposits received 2RBERE 31,708 11,950 - - 145 43,803
Interest-bearing bank and WERTRAMEE

other borrowings 127,129 31,647 100,381 316,239 71,400 646,796
Finance lease payables ERRBERL - 190 600 861 - 1,651

178,386 73,061 152,003 317,100 71,545 792,095
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows: (continued)

45. B EREE B RERBR (8)

RBESERE (&)

)
/

TEAAEERZEEANESRARB AW

AMBENKAENZHBR: (B)

Group rE
2007
ZTTtF
3to
Less than less than 1105 Over 5
On demand 3 months 12 months years years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEANEE —FUE
REXE PRZFEA +=EANUT ERFEUT AFHNE @
THT THT THET THET THET THT
Due to a jointly-controlled entity R REHI B BB 612 - - - - 612
Due to associates AN WNIE S 2,846 - - - - 2,846
Trade creditors ERE SRR 11,093 27,099 1 - - 38,193
Financial liabilities included SAHMERER
in sundry creditors, B ERREKEZEEZ
accruals and deposits received 2RER 24,745 11,178 - - = 35,923
Interest-bearing bank and fERTREMEE
other borrowings 109,487 46,873 79,458 286,072 92,774 614,664
Finance lease payables EREERL - 72 216 319 = 607
148,783 85,222 79,675 286,391 92,774 692,845
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows: (continued)

45. B EMEE B ERBEK (&)

RBESER (#)

TERSAKER
AFRN KA EOBHRBER: (B)

Pe=|

=

BRERAE LW

Company RAT
2008
—BB)N\E
3to
Less than less than 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZHANLE -t
REXE SR=EA t=@EAUT ZIEUT @it
T TiEx TR THExL THExL
Due to subsidiaries LIRS 197,042 - - 197,042
Financial liabilities included AR REMERR
in sundry creditors, EiERREYERE
accruals and deposits received ERHER 927 - - - 927
Interest-bearing bank and MERTREMBEE
other borrowings - 831 2,493 8,629 11,953
197,969 831 2,493 8,629 209,922

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X &
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45,

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as

at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows: (continued)

BHEREEERRBER (&)

REBEESRR (5)

TEAAEERZEEANESRARB AW
AMBENKAENZHBR: (B)

Company b NN
2007
Z2TLEF
3to
Less than less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“EANLEE —FLE
REXE SR=EA +TZBEAUT ZEREHUT st
TEL THET FHT TET TET
Due to subsidiaries FE A W B A R 3B 138,272 - - - 138,272
Interest-bearing bank and fERTREMEE
other borrowings - 6,162 4,986 11,676 22,824
138,272 6,162 4,986 11,676 161,096

Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about
the future prices of the financial instruments held. It
represents the potential loss the investments might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price
movements. The Company performs periodic evaluations
of the investment portfolio in order to minimise the risk
associated with the investments whilst continuing to
follow the Company’s investment objectives.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade creditors, sundry creditors, accruals
and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and finance lease payables less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents total equity. The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

45. BHEREE B TR BX (8)

EXER

AEEEAEENEEZRR RERAEE
BERBERRNEN BARRBRENEARL
T AXFHEEBEE FREANBRRE
B

AEERBEEBEBNNES EEEE ARG
BUFLAB RERIABELERE X
SEFREE MBRIKE KR  RRRIKEE
AEBETTR -BE_TT\FR_TTt
FZA=+—"BLFER AEEHNHEHA
B BREIEF-

AEBUEARBBELRETEANBR-B
AEELXSFRERUNEAERNEFAE
ZM-FREBEENE SRR EMEM
R EAEBERREBEMNRES WRZE|ITR
HEHEREENBERY RERERRE
EFERBE - BARKEBRAE-HERER
BELLRMT:

Group KEE

2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

—EENE T LF

Mo 5E FE T FETT

Trade creditors BB 5 ERNK 29 95,895 38,193

Sundry creditors, accruals and H b fE A BR TR FEET

deposits received EREBEWZS 137,548 103,110
Interest-bearing bank and B ZRITREMER

other borrowings 646,796 614,664

Finance lease payables JE <1 /b & 7R 4V 31 1,651 607

Less: Cash and cash equivalents AR EeRIBEEEIES (133,701) (129,103)

Net debt FARE 748,189 627,471

Total capital 48 & 7K 2,851,880 1,402,501

Capital and net debt EANFEAE 3,600,069 2,029,972

Gearing ratio BEARBENLE 21% 31%
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46.

47.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs during the year, certain comparative amounts
have been adjusted to conform with the current year's
presentation and to show separately comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time
in 2008. In addition, the comparative income statement
has been represented as if the operation discontinued
during the current year had been discontinued at the
beginning of the comparative period (note 12).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 22 July 2008.
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as RZZEZENF =A==+ —AFXEERFENEKE

at 31 March 2008 are as follows: MEFBOT:
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HMEBEOE ERRFE
BB HAME Pzl (F7K) BotE THER
Hong Kong
&E
Unit B, 26th Floor Medium term | 1,131 100 Completed
Wyler Centre, Phase II, lease

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories

R R ERRE 4 T B &K
RNEHEE200 5%

@ LE =

261EB=E

Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term C 87* 100 Completed
61 South Wall Road, lease

Kowloon City, Kowloon

JUBE NLEE Ik m 2B R HATE Y ] BIE R
615 T & RE

Unit No. G37, Ground Long term C 44% 100  Completed
Floor, Peninsula Centre, lease

67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon

FUBE 58 ) IE BR3P FE 4 38 RHAEL ] B &K
675 ¥ B LM T

G375k B L

Tak Sing Alliance Building, Medium term  C 780¢% 100 Completed
1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, lease

115 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

BEALH RHATR Y ] B &K
AR ER 1155
EREERNE
1MEE3E

151 = 181&



Name/location

BB

Hong Kong
58

15th Floor and

Carparking Space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
MARE

YD IH 58 381-3895%

KD THEKNE

1548 &

R S8 555 A B AL

Mainland China
P B K BE

Units 9A-F, 10A-F, 22A-C

Man Wah Mansion,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
R IYI AL BE [R

NEANEAE

9A-F, 10A-F, 22A-C

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
RN B =
ARBEKEER R
EEMRRERES

N

Tenure

EREE

Medium term
lease

FEAED

Medium term
lease

FEAMEW

Medium term
lease

REIE X

Approx.

gross area

Type (m?)
BEBOH

5l (F A 3K)

| 1,899
T

C/R 2,748
B E

C 50,339
]

Effective
% held
BEREE
BatE

100

100

72

Stage of
completion

55 B P B

Completed

Completed

B& K

Completed



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TEMEHRR
31 March 2008
TT\F=A=+—R
Approx.
gross area Effective  Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion
HEBOE BERER
28 HRAME =Pzl (F A 3K) BotE THER
Imperial Palace, Long term C/R 4,899* 80 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen
RN B = R HEAE L) s E B &K
R
E
Sk gz 2 B
14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 6,838* 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal
) BEH =] =34
B B B8 1455
A building at Gowtong Leasehold 14,754% 100  Completed
Village, Panyu County,
Guangdong Province
PR ERAE BEH T B &K
BEH
HENZEBT

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED %=
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Particulars of properties held as property, plant and equipment

by the Group as at 31 March 2008 are as follows:

Name/location Tenure

2V 1 HAME
Hong Kong

'E

Unit A, 26th Floor and Leasehold
Carparking Space Nos 19, 20, 21,
22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and
Lorry Parking Space No. L21

on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories
R

REHEE200 5%

BP0 _H

261 AE R 21 E 195

205% 2158 - 225% -

395% 405k B &
1EL-219 BB HE

BEFEH

Type

&5l

R-ZFBENF=ZA=+—BAKERFEERYD
X BERERBZOEFBOT:

Approx.
gross area Effective  Stage of
(m?) % held completion
BEBEOH BERER
(E7HK) Botk THER
1,249* 100  Completed
B &K



Name/location

BB

Mainland China
B K pE

A building at Shi Lien Road,
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,

Shi Lou Town,
Panyu County,

Guangdong Province

fRNERE
BERHOBEA

B T E

Z—EETF

Nos. 2-6, 5/F,

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic

Zone

RIYI LB [
ARmBEE K
R 2R
EEPRERES
FE2-65%

14 Zu Miao Road,

Foshan Municipal
LT
16 B9 3% 1457

Tenure

EREE

Leasehold

BEEH

Leasehold

BFH

Leasehold

BEFEH

Type

Wl

C

C

&

Approx.
gross area
(m?)
BEBOH
(FEFHK)

3,389%

1,922¢%

12,954#

Effective
% held
BEREE
BatE

100

100

100

Stage of
completion

55 B P B

Completed

Completed

Completed

2K



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

198

TEMEHRR
31 March 2008
EZNF=ZA=+—H
Approx.

gross area Effective  Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HEBOE BERER
28 HRAME =Pzl (F A 3K) BotE THER
Republic of Guatemala
e S A ME
18 Avenida 39-60, Freehold 5,576° 100 Completed
Zona 12, Guatemala City

KAERE T =34

Notes: e
Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial MEHER:I-TE R—EE C—BX
# Gross floor area # REHEE
@  Net floor area @ FEHEE
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Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2008 are as follows:

Location

i B

Mainland China
Pl K BE

Chaoyang Road to the north,
Zishanhu to the south, Yiyang
%5 5% 70 B4 5 B& DA B A L A8 DA b

Zishancun Reservoir to the east,
Yiyang Road to the north, Yiyang
g 5 T 8 LU A 7K JEE 7 R

=5 KB Al

Tuanyuan Road to the east, Yiyang

K T [ (8] 5% 7 Al

Bk

Yangwuling Village, Lucigiao Village,

Yiyang
=5 F F RN BIBE

Use

i<

Commercial/
residential

HMEEE

Commercial/
residential

BMEMEE

Commercial/
residential

BMEEE

Commercial/
residential

BMEEE

Site
area

T EE
(m?)

(F7K)

29,997

103,584

318,709

120,040

R-BENF=ZA=+—"BAEERFBEERED

MEFBWT:

Stage of

completion

% B P B}

Foundation work
in progress
HETIRESTH
Foundation work
in progress
METIRETH
Land bank
&

Land bank

&

Effective

% held

BERER

Bk

75

75

75

75

Expected
completion
date

FsrE R B 8

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A



NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting
of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 22 August
2008 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements
and the Reports of the Directors and of the Auditors for
the year ended 31 March 2008.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2008.

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix Directors’ remuneration.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without amendments, the following resolutions
as an Ordinary Resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  “THAT

(a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to purchase
issued shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company, subject to and in accordance
with the applicable laws and the requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
as amended from time to time be and is
hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to
be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date
of this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

BEEENER ([ARF]) EAR_ZTNF
NAZ+ZB (EHR) LF T —RERERE
B E TSR —EERH CAN) BE TR
ARPBRRBERE ARG T FE:

1. HBHE_ZTZTN\F=-A=+—HLHFE
REGHBRERESTGRE REBM

& e

2. EREBE_ZETENF=A=1T—HLEFE
ZARHEARB

3. EMERES IRBEESSETESTZM

4. BENZAEGRHEE UREEESETEHN

5. ERFHFEERYNEAB (BERESR
EF]) TIRBRREBRHASR:

(a) EARRFBRD)BRZREIT  EiF
HRTEES—RUERN EN
éiﬁ)ﬂZiffﬁﬂ&%%ﬂ%ﬁés&%
PIBRARRES EMRA (D
ﬂgaT)Z%ﬁEﬂEEE%ﬁBﬁZ%
AT REBYETERRFZ
— YN ABEARRRE #TT
PR B E(E0.1078 7T Z X
)

(b) RELX(BRZHLEMERZ
RO EERRE ATBRNRE
REBEBAPZEHTRAEE
HBE210% @ T A BEETAR
It BREER B &
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BRBFREBE

B.

(©)

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this Resolution by
Ordinary Resolution of the shareholders
in general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”.

“THAT

(a)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this Resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue or
otherwise deal with additional shares of the
Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall authorise the Directors during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period;

(0 BARFE=RMEZ [BREAHME] T
FHARZRBEZAETY
ER-—EREFELE AL
HAfA -

(i) ARATERREFAE
A R

(i) NRBERLZENLH
BREREBRRAGRBEEA
RBRT A HER 2
B X

(iiy ARARMZARAMAHAR
ZAPIREARRRBRLT
TERREFAXEHRE
mZBele

[Eh&&:

(a) HERBBROAVBZEHT —K
REGHMEEEEFREE
A (EER T TEARNRE R
BERNARE BTHEEARR
BB RIEH R T
EFBITEXSENZEZR B
YT

(b) ARF=()DBEZHUESKE
EEEFRAYPRAELRET
AR AR A IR A RIKITE
RERNZEZ HERER
&
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the aggregate nominal amount of share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in sub-
paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i)  a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(i)  the exercise of any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
and

(iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in
lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of the passing
of this Resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this Resolution until whichever is the earlier
of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company;

(ii) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this Resolution by
Ordinary Resolution of the shareholders
in general meeting; and
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(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares of the Company
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regards to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of,
or the requirements of any recognised body
or any stock exchange, in any territory outside
Hong Kong).".

C.  "THAT conditional upon the passing of the Ordinary

Resolutions no. 5A and 5B set out above, the

general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant

to resolution no. 5B be and is hereby extended by

the addition thereto of an amount representing the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

repurchased by the Company under the authority

granted in resolution no. 5A, provided that such

amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate

nomi

nal amount of the share capital of the

Company in issue at the date of the passing of this

Resolution.”.

6. To transact any other business.

By Order of the

Board

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited

Ng Yan Kwong

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30 July 2008
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Notes:

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 18 August
2008 to Friday, 22 August 2008 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled
to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her
behalf. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company. If
more than one proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall
specify the number and class of shares in respect of which each
such proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding
Resolution No. 5 above will be sent to shareholders shortly
together with the 2008 annual report.
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